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KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES CORPORATION LIMITED, BENGALURU

FIGURES AT A  GLANCE

` in crores

98

 

Sl.
No

Particulars 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-132003-04

1 Sales turn-
over

1307.00 2228.00 2976.00 3603.00 6381.00 8228.00 9653.00 11707.30 14,125.59 15467.83

-2013 14

2 Other 
Income

4.00 10.00 10.00 15.00 29.00 39.00 37.84 45.49 68.63 39.16

3 Profit before 
tax

0.41 6.61 6.61 5.31 30.86 17.57 8.57 22.84 37.50 47.27

4 Profit after 
tax

0.27 4.12 3.77 2.97 20.00 16.05 7.74 14.54 27.54 33.98

5 Reserves and 
surplus

0.26 4.40 8.20 10.68 28.35 42.06 47.46 59.20 83.96 115.15

6 Net worth 2.26

 

6.40

 

10.20

 

12.68

 

30.35 44.06

 

49.46

 

71.20

 

95.96 127.15

 
     

7 Finance cost ` 0.22

 

0.82 1.25 1.54 3.27 2.83 0.63 0.12 0.07 0.10

8 Privilege fee 22.50 32.00 41.00 165.50 345.38 479.64 570.14 695.15 829.42 6.00

9 Dividend -- -- -- 0.40 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.40 2.40 2.40

10 Manpower 
(Nos.)

160 234 263 294 426 472 475 481

 

482 473

11 Annual Sales 
per employee

8.17

 

9.56 11.35

 

12.31

 

14.98 17.43

 

20.32

 

24.34

 

29.31 32.70

12

Admn. & 
Gen.expense
as a % to 
sales turn 
over 

0.56

 

0.54 0.45

 

0.57

 

0.52 0.46

 

0.47

 

0.38

 

0.36 0.39

13

IML Sales 
(in crores 
CBs)

0.70

 

1.13 1.43

 

1.57

 

3.25 3.66

 

3.90

 

4.63

 

4.95 5.07

14

Beer Sales 
(in Crore 
CBs)

0.74

 

0.88 1.14

 

1.21

 

1.43 1.54

 

1.42

 

1.84

 

2.12 2.22

15

Spirit Sales 
(in crore 
bulk ltrs)

0.46

 

5.09 8.51

 

13.15

 

24.56 25.65

 

23.42

 

30.44

 

42.85 36.71

 
     

16

MF 
investment 
including 
opening 
balance 

-

 

-

 

- -

 

475.50 3924.40

 

3617.53

 

7693.00 9683.00

 

11057.03

17728.69

40.56

51.13

31.50

143.84

155.84

0.03

10.50

2.40

464

38.21

0.38

5.26

2.44

38.85

7118.16

2014-15

19964.97 21806.74 22,278.64

42.84 37.88 36.09

49.62 43.40 46.10

32.55 26.15 26.95

172.53 195.79 222.74

184.53 207.79 234.74

0.01 0.00

12.0012.00 12.00

2.402.40 2.40

49.84

473 453

42.39 48.13

0.38 0.39

5.60 5.67

2.53 2.70

44.11 52.05

18417.87 21341.00

2015-16 2016-17

s

0.04

447

0.47

5.59

2.44

40.33

20387.59
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KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd. Office : 4th Floor, TTMC ‘A’ Block, BMTC Building, K.H. Road, Shanthinagar, Bangalore - 560 027

No.CS-AGM-14

NOTICE

th
NOTICE is hereby given that the 14  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS of 

ththe Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Limited will be held on MONDAY, the 25  September 
2017 at 5.00 PM at the Chamber of Additional Chief Secretary, Finance Department,  GoK, Room # 

nd
255,  2  floor, Vidhana Soudha, Bengaluru - 560 001  to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To Receive, Consider and Adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation 
of the Financial Year ended 31.03.2017 and the reports of the Board of Directors along 
with the Auditor's Report thereon and the comments of Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India.  

2. To declare Dividend on the Equity Shares for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2017.

3. To fix the Remuneration of the Auditors of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Place: Bangalore H.S.N.RAO
Date:  14.09.2017 Company Secretary and  Compliance officer

To, 1. The Members of the Company
2. Statutory Auditors of the Company
3. Director/s of the Company

Note: I. A  MEMBER  ENTITLED  TO  ATTEND  AND  VOTE  AT  THE  MEETING  IS   
ENTITLED  TO  APPOINT  A  PROXY  TO  ATTEND  AND  VOTE INSTEAD  
OF  HIMSELF  AND  THE  PROXY  NEED  NOT  BE  MEMBER OF  THE  
COMPANY.  THE  INSTRUMENT  OF  PROXY,  IN  ORDER  TO BE 
EFFECTIVE,  SHOULD  REACH  THE  REGISTERED  OFFICE   OF  THE 
COMPANY  AT  LEAST  48  HOURS  BEFORE  THE  TIME  FIXED  FOR 
THE  MEETING. 

ii. As per Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India have appointed the Statutory Auditors for the year 2017-18.

iii. Consent of the Members of the Corporation have been obtained for Shorter Notice 
Under Sec.101 (1) of the Companies Act,  2013.

******************
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2016-17

01. On behalf of the Board of Directors of our Corporation, I have immense pleasure in presenting the 
th

14  Annual Report of the Corporation along with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial 
Year 2016-17. 

02.    BUSINESS MODEL 

As the Members are aware, the Corporation is solely engaged in canalization of Liquor and Spirit 
in Karnataka State. Under the present Excise Policy of Government of Karnataka, all the 
Manufacturers Suppliers / Importers who want to sell the Liquor or Beer in Karnataka whether 
produced in Karnataka or outside Karnataka, have to canalize the same through the Corporation 
and the Retailers have to purchase the Liquor and Beer only from the Corporation for re-sale in 
the Karnataka State. 

03.   FINANCIAL RESULTS 

A) Performance Highlights

During the year under review, the Corporation has achieved good results as in the previous years. 
The highlights of the performance were as under:-

SL.No. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

A. Sales turn – over 22278.63 21806.74 19964.97

B. Revenue from Operations 107.59 104.82 96.58

C. Other income 36.09 37.88 42.84

D. Privilege fee to GoK 12.00 12.00 12.00

E. Finance Charges 0.00 0.00 0.00

F. Net Profit (after tax) 26.95 26.15 32.55

G. Dividend 2.40 2.40 2.40

H. Reserves and surplus 222.74 195.79 172.53

I. Paid up share capital 12.00 12.00 12.00

Table - 1 ( ` in Crores)

B)  Revenue From Operations

The Corporation earned Revenues from Operations amounting to ` 107.59 crores as against 
` 104.82 crores in the previous year. The breakup of Sales in quantity terms were as under:- 
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2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

2.22

2.44

(in Crores CBs )BEER SALES

2.53

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

SALES TURNOVER (Rs.in Crores)

15468

17729

19965

22279

21807

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

5.07

5.26

5.60

(in Crores CBs )IML SALES

5.67

5.59

2.70

2.44

101

 
Annual Report 2016-17



SL.No. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

A. IML 5.59 5.67 5.60

B. Beer 2.44 2.70 2.54

C. Spirit (in crore bulk liters) 40.33 52.05 44.11

(in crores CBs)Table - 2-Quantitative Sales

SL.No. Particulars 2016-17

A. IML  &  Beer 20405.68 19502.62 18081.66

B. Spirit 1872.95 2304.12 1883.31

Total 22278.63 21806.74 19964.97

2015-16 2014-15

(` in crore )Table - 3- Sales Value

04. SHARE CAPITAL 

The total issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital continued to be at `12.00 crores 
consisting of  1,20,000 Equity Shares of  ̀  1,000 each.

05.    LIQUOR SEGMENT

During 2016-17, in value terms, IML segment constituted 76.65% (previous year 74.68 %)  
of the total sales turn-over, while beer segment constituted 14.94 % (previous year 14.76 %) of 
the total sales turn-over, whereas, spirit constituted 8.41 % (previous year 10.56% ) of the total 
sales turn-over.  

The breakup of IML sales in quantity and value terms was as under:-

Qnty - in crore CBs / Value - ` in crore Table - 4- IML & Beer Sales

2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Whisky 4.54 4.59 4.59 13371.44 12791.45 11995.06

Rum 0.43 0.44 0.40  1374.53 1290.25  1134.29

Brandy 0.39 0.41 0.42 1583.81 1514.71 1487.81

2.67 2.93 2.73 4075.90 3906.20  3464.52

Total 8.03   8.37 8.14 20405.68 19502.61 18081.68

Particulars
Quantity Value

Gin, Vodka, 
Beer & others
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PÉÆÃn gÀÆ.UÀ¼ÀÄ

44.11

36.71

38.85
40.33

2016-172014-152012-13 2013-14 2015-16

(in Crore bulk Litres)SPIRIT SALES
52.05

43.40

46.10

47.27

2014-15

2015-16

2016-17

51.13

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

49.62

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

115.15

143.84

172.53

195.79

222.74

(Rs. in Crores)

(Rs. in Crores)RESERVES AND SURPLUS

103

2012-13

2013-14

Annual Report 2016-17



06. DIVISION WISE MARKET SHARE OF  IML  AND  BEER  PRODUCTS

Table – 5 - Division wise market share (in quantity terms) were as under:
       

2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Bengaluru 35.23 34.24 33.94 45.84 42.86 43.22

Belgaum 13.70 13.95 13.94 10.54 11.80 11.76

Gulbarga 8.27 8.51 8.77 8.20 9.70 10.08

Hospet 12.10 12.57 12.90 8.28 9.20 9.18

Mangalore 14.06 13.94 13.90 17.26 16.60 16.00

Mysore 16.64 16.79 16.55 9.88 9.84 9.76

TOTAL 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Division
IML Products (in%) Beer  (in%)

07. MARKET SHARE OF TOP 20 BRANDS 

The details of market share of top 20 brands, in their respective segments, during 2016-17, were 
as under:-

                 ( in %)Table - 6

Product Market Product Market 
Share Share

Whisky 93.65 Brandy 99.82

Rum 99.49 Gin 99.99

Beer 98.61 Vodka 96.34

2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

Local sales 26.51 32.70 22.34 -18.93 1199.03 1410.30 935.18 -14.97

Exportsales 9.07 16.20 17.05 -44.01 432.77 718.47 709.90 -39.77

Import 4.75 3.15 4.72 50.80 241.15 175.35 238.23 37.52

Total 40.33 52.05 44.11 -22.52 1872.95 2304.12 1883.31 -18.71                 

Particulars
(Quantity in Crore bulk liters.) (Value - ` in crores)

% of 
increase  

in 2016-17 
over 

2015-16

% of 
increase  

in 2016-17 
over 

2015-16

08. SPIRIT SEGMENT

The details local sales, export sales, imports (both in quantity and value) capacity utilization and 
average yield are furnished hereunder:

Table - 7 - Spirit Sales

104

 
Annual Report 2016-17



2012-13 2013-14

10.50

6.00

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

11057.03

7118.16

18417.87

21341.00 20387.59

13.73

10.33

16.83

12.79

16.03

2014-15 2015-16 2016-172012-13 2013-14

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

10.50

12.00

MF Investments (including opening Balance) (Rs. in Crores)

INTEREST ON FIXED DEPOSIT (Rs. in Crores)

PRIVILEGE FEE (Rs. in Crores)

10.50

12.00

10.50

12.00
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09. FINANCIAL RESULTS

After paying the Privilege Fee of ` 12.00 crores to Government of Karnataka and meeting all 
other expenses, during the year 2016-17, the Corporation earned an amount of  ̀  46.10 crores as 
profit before tax. The profit after tax, was  ̀  26.95 crores. The comparison of the profits over the 
three previous years is as under:- 

SL.No. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

a. Profit before tax 46.10 43.40 49.62

b. Tax 19.15 17.25 17.07

c. Profit after tax 26.95 26.15 32.55

(` in crores)

10.   RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

A sum of  ̀  2.69 crores is transferred to General Reserves. With this you will be glad to note that 
the cumulative Reserves and Surplus as on 31.03.2017 were at  ̀  222.74 crores. The reserves are 
18.56 times of paid up share capital of the Corporation.

11.   MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

Few major achievements of the Corporation during the year were:-

i. Sales-turnover  ̀  22278.63 crores [Previous year  ̀  21806.74 crores ]

ii. Contribution to Public Ex-chequer  ̀  31.15  crores [Previous year  ̀  29.25 crores]

iii. Net worth ̀  234.74 crores [Previous year ̀  207.79 crores]

12.   INVESTMENT IN MUTUAL FUNDS  

As in the case of earlier years, in respect of operational funds temporarily available, the 
Corporation continued to invest them in Debt based liquid schemes of mutual funds and fixed 
deposits. During the year under review, the particulars of investments in, and  redemptions from,  
fixed deposits and mutual funds respectively are as under :-

Table - 8

Fixed deposits 220.03   261.30 220.03 261.30

Mutual funds 116.00 20271.59 20229.04 158.55

TOTAL 336.03 20532.89 20449.07 419.85

(` in crores)Table - 09

opening 
balance 

01.04.2016

Deposited / 
Invested 
During 
the year

Matured / 
redeemed

Balance 
as on 

31.03.2017
Particulars
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2012-13 2013-14 2014-15

32.70 38.21 42.39 48.13 49.84

ANNUAL SALES PER EMPLOYEE (Rs. in Crores)

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

127.15

155.84
184.53

234.74
207.79

`̀̀ `̀̀`̀̀ `̀̀ `̀̀

NET WORTH (Rs. in Crores)

2015-16 2016-17

Admin & Gen. Expenses as a % to sales turn over 

0.38 0.38

0.39 0.39

0.47

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17
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13.   OTHER INCOME

The particulars of other income earned on investment of its short term and long term funds, in 
mutual funds and fixed deposits of banks are as under :-

SL.No. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

(` in crores)Table - 10

Income from fixed deposit and 

mutual funds-

a. Fixed Deposit 

b. Dividend from  mutual fund

Total (A)

(A)

Income from Other Sources

a. Demurrage fees

b. Interest

c. Others

Total (B)

(B)

Grand Total (A) + (B) 36.09 37.87 42.84

16.03

5.72_____

21.75

16.83

7.63_____

24.46

13.73

10.36_____

24.09

9.02

0.46

4.86_____

14.34

8.95

0.83

3.63_____

13.41

8.75

6.54

3.46_____

18.75

14.   DIVIDEND

Your Directors recommended a Dividend of  ` 240 Lakhs. ( i.e @ 20 % ) for the year under 
review on the Paid up Share Capital of  ̀  12.00 crores. 

15. CONTRIBUTION TO PUBLIC EXCHEQUER 

During the year under review, the Corporation contributed a sum of ` 31.15crores to the 
exchequer of Central and State Government as under. 

  

(` in crores)Table - 11 - Contribution To Public Exchequer 

SL.No. Particulars 2016-17 2015-16 2014-115

a. Privilege fee paid  12.00       12.00       12.00

b. Corporate Tax          19.15    17.25         18.01

Total 31.15  29.25  30.01
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2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

3
3

.9
8

3
1

.5
0

3
2

.5
5

3
2

.5
5

2
6

.1
5

PROFIT AFTER TAX (Rs. in Crores)

2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

464

473

453

473

447

MAN POWER (Nos.)
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99.49

93.65

96.34
98.61

99.82

99.99

Rum Whisky Vodka Beer GinBrandy

Segment-wise market share of top 20 brands during 2016-17 in (%)
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( in Nos )

Table - 12

Particulars Officers Non-Officers Total

Deputed 75 318 393

Contract / Consultant 11 43 54

Total 86 361 447

a.  Officers and Non-Officers

b.  Male & Female Employees ( in Nos )

Particulars Male Female Total

Deputed 384 09 393

Contract 40 14 54

Total 424 23 447

16. HUMAN CAPITAL

As on 31.03.2017, the total man-power of the Corporation stood at 447 The break up of man 
power was as under:-.

17. EMPLOYER – EMPLOYEE RELATION

During the year under review the employer-employee relation in the Corporation continued to be 
Peaceful, Cordial and Harmonious. The Corporation continued to give thrust for training and 
development of the employees. 

18. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 
EXCHANGE  EARNINGS  AND  OUTGO 

The information, required under sec134 (2) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 were furnished as under:-

a. Conservation of Energy: The Corporation, being a trading concern, is consuming power 
for the purpose of office use only.

b. Technology absorption: The Corporation, being a trading concern, has not availed any 
technology from any one. 

c. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: The Corporation neither utilized nor earned any 
Foreign Exchange.  

19. BOARD  MEETINGS 

During the year 2016-17, the Corporation held 05 Board meetings on 28.05.2016 / 23.07.2016 / 
19.09.2016 / 20.12.2016 and 18.03.2017

20.   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Presently, the Board consist of Sri.I.S.N.Prasad, IAS, Chairman and Sri. M.S.Srikar, IAS,  
Managing Director and Sri.M.Manjunatha Naik, IAS, Director of the Corporation.
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21.  PROFILE OF THE DIRECTOR'S 

The brief profile of the Directors is furnished here under:-

Sri.I.S.N.Prasad, IAS  - DIN - 01469651

Sri. I.S.N.Prasad, IAS belongs to the 1986 batch of the Indian Administrative Service. He has a 

Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering. He has worked in Petroleum and Natural Gas for about 

four years in the Central Government. Besides, he has held important positions and successfully 

rendered services in the various department of Government of Karnataka viz., Revenue 

Department, Rural Development, Urban Development, Public Works Department, General 

Administration, Information Technology, Bio-Technology etc., He has also received training in 

the Asian Institute of Management Development, Manila. Presently, he is holding the position of 

Additional Chief  Secretary, Finance Department, to the Government of Karnataka GoK, has 

appointed Sri. I.S.N.Prasad, IAS as Chairman of the Corporation w.e.f. 21.09.2013. He was 

appointed as CMD of the Corporation w.e.f.16.06.2017 and he ceased to be Managing Director 

effective from 13.07.2017.

Sri. Arvind Shrivastava, IAS – DIN - 02340040

Sri. Arvind Shrivastava, IAS belongs to the 1994 batch of the Indian Administrative Service. He 

is a B.Tech in Civil Engineering with M.A. in Economics. He has held various important 

positions both in the Government as well as in Public Sectors in the field of Public Finance 

Management, Urban Development, Revenue Administration, Urban Local Bodies, Local Self-

Government, District Administration including maintenance of Law and Order, Secretary to 

Government (Budget & Resources in GOK). He was appointed as the Director of the Corporation 

w.e.f  10.05.2013. Further, he was also appointed as the Managing Director of the Corporation 

w.e.f. 27.06.2013 and he ceased to be Managing Director of the Corporation w.e.f. 16.06.2017.

Sri. S. R. Umashankar, IAS – DIN - 02850951

Sri.S.R.Umashankar, IAS belongs to the 1994 batch of the Indian Administrative Service. He is a 

B.Tech in Civil Engineering with M.A in Economics. He has held various important positions 

both in the Government as well as in Public Sectors in the field of Public Finance Management, 

Urban Development, Revenue Administrative, Urban Local Bodies, Local Self Government, 

District Administration including maintenance of Law and Order etc. He has been appointed as 

the Director of the Corporation w.e.f. 19.06.2015 and ceased to be Director w.e.f. 07.09.2016.

Sri. M. Manjunatha Naik, IAS – DIN - 07640272

Sri.M.Manjunatha Naik, IAS belongs to the 2001 batch of the Indian Administrative Service. He 

is a Master Degree in Political Science. He has served in various Sectors of Government for about 

33 years. Some of them are Chief Executive Officer, Zill Panchayath, Chikkamangalur and 

Bellary, Deputy Commissioner and District Magistrate, Haveri Distric, Regional Commissioner, 

Belagavi, Commissioner, Karnataka Rural Drinking Water Supply and Sanitation Department. 

Currently, working as Commissioner for Excise in Karnataka and also holding concurrent charge 
th

of Secretary, 6  State Pay Commission. He has been appointed as the Director of the Corporation 

w.e.f. 19.10.2016 (from the date of allotment of DIN).
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Sri. M. S. Srikar, IAS – DIN - 07882939

Sri. M. S. Srikar, IAS belongs to 1999 batch of Indian Administrative Service. He is a University 

Gold Medalist holding a Bachelor Degree in Law in Prestigious National Law School of India 

University (NLSIU), Bangalore, INDIA. He has extensive experience working on International 

Trade, Law and Policy Issues, both as a Trade Negotiator and a Legal Advisor. He has served for 8 

years with the Union Government of India, He served as Private Secretary to the Chairman of the 

Unique Identification Authority of India (UIDIA), Mr.Nandan Nilekani (who held a Cabinet 

Minister Level Rank) from 2009 to 2013. He, has 10 years of professional experience in 

Government of Karnataka at various Senior  Positions. He has also served for 3 years as Chief 

Executive Officer of Dharward District, where he was responsible for aspects of development 

from Health, Sanitation, Infrastructure, Water supply, Forestry and Education. He was also 

special Commissioner of Bangalore City Corporation. He headed the intelligence and 

enforcement wing of the State Commercial Tax Department in 2003 which was responsible for 

detecting Sales Tax Evasion in the State. He was appointed by the Government of Karnataka as 

the Managing Director of the Corporation w.e.f. 17.07.2017 (from the date of allotment of DIN)  

and he ceased to be the Managing Director  w.e.f. 13-10-2017

22.   DIRECTORS'  RESPONSIBILITY  STATEMENT 

Your Directors state that:

st
a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31  March 2017, the 

applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation and there 

are no material departures from the same.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent  so  as  to  give  a  true  and  

fair  view  of  the  state  of  affairs of the Corporation at the end of the Financial Year ended 
st

31  March, 2017 and of the profit of the Corporation for that year.

c) Proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance  with  the  provisions  of  the Companies  Act,  2013  have been taken for 

safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities.

d) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company 

and such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and operating effectively. 

f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

112

 
Annual Report 2016-17



23.   AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The provisions of the Companies Act, regarding constitution of Audit Committee is not 
thapplicable to the Corporation. However, the Board of the Directors at its 46  Board Meeting held 

on 07.08.2013,  Suo-Moto constituted the Audit Committee consisting of the Chairman of the 

Corporation and Managing Director of the Corporation as its members for the purpose of 

reviewing the Internal Audit Reports, Statutory Audit Reports & CAG Audit Reports and for such 

other matters as may be referred to it by the Board of Directors. 

24. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration payable to the Managing Director is fixed by Government of Karnataka. Part 

time Directors were not paid any Remuneration except Sitting Fee of Rs.1,000/- each for Board / 

Committee Meetings attended by them.

25.   FIXED DEPOSITS 

The Corporation has not accepted any Fixed Deposits from the public. 

26. INTERNAL  FINANCIAL  CONTROLS

The Corporation has in place adequate internal Financial controls with reference to Financial 

Statements. During the year under review, no reportable material weakness in the design or 

operation were observed.  

27. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Corporation has in place adequate Risk Management Infrastructure capable of addressing 

Risks such as Financial, Credit , Market, Liquidity, Security, Property  etc.,. The Corporation's 

Management Systems, Organizational Structure, Processes, Standards governs how to conduct 

business of the Corporation and Manages Associated Risks.

28. COMPLIANCES UNDER RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT 2005 

The Corporation is the public authority under Sec.2 (h) of Right to Information Act, 2005. 

Accordingly, the provisions of the said Act are promptly being complied with. 

In order to hasten up the supply of information / reply to the applicants under RTI Act, the 

Corporation decentralized the whole process by appointing Company Secretary as Public 

Information Officer for Head Office and all the Depot Managers – both IML & Spirit Depots – as 

Public Information Officers for their respective Depots. This enables the interested applicants to 

submit their requests for information under RTI Act and get their reply / information with least 

delay. The Corporation has also revised the information as on 31.03.2017 u/s 4(1) (a) & 4(1) (b) 

of  RTI Act, 2005 and hosted on the web site.

The status of applications received seeking information under RTI Act and appeals received 

during 2016-17 are furnished here under:-
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A. Applications received seeking information:-

Sl.No. Particulars Nos.

i No. of applications pending at the beginning of the year (NIL) NIL

ii No. of applications received seeking information 60 (76)

iii No. of applications disposed off during the year 60 (76)

iv No. of applications pending for disposal at the end of the year (NIL) NIL  

v Fees & Cost collected and remitted to KSBCL a/c (Rs.) 1560 (2648)

* figures shown in bracket relates to previous year of the corresponding period.

Sl.No. Particulars Nos.

i No. of appeals pending at the beginning of the year (NIL)  NIL    

ii No. of appeals received during the year 1   (2)

iii No. of appeals disposed off during the year (1   (2)

iv. No. of appeals pending at the end of the year (NIL)  NIL 

B.           Appeals

* figures shown in bracket relates to previous year of the corresponding period.

As required by the Government, the necessary information for preparation of Annual Report for 

the year 2016-17 by the Karnataka Information Commission has been furnished to them in Form 

I, II, III, IV & V as prescribed by the authority.

29. SEXUAL HARASEMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,  
PROHIBITION  &  REDRESSAL) ACT 2013:

In terms of the provisions of the aforesaid Act, the Corporation has constituted internal 
Complaint Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All the 
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. During 
the year under review, there were no cases filed under the said Act. 

30.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE MEETING (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee formulated by the Corporation has recommended to 
the Board CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Corporation which has 
been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Corporation's website 

.  During the year the Corporation had identified area relating to Health Care 
towards establishment of additional operation theaters for providing service to the cancer 
patients and towards establishment of Operation theaters for Burnt Victims and providing food 
and uniforms to school children. The Corporation would also undertake other activities in 
compliance with the Scheduled VII of the Companies Act. During the year Corporation has 

www.ksbcl.com
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contributed Rs.96,10,000/- (2% of the average net profit of the three Financial Years) on CSR 
activities. During the year under review, 02 CSR Committee Meetings were held 19.09.2016  & 
18.03.2017. 

The Annual Report on CSR activities for the Financial Year 2016-17 is as under:

CSR 
Project OR

Activity
identified

Sector in 
which the 
project is 
covered

Project of program
1) Local Area or other 
(2) Specify the State 
and District where 

projects or programs 
was undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
Project or 

Program wise

Amount spent on 
the Projects or 

Programs Sub  Heads:
(1) Direct Expenditure 
on Projects or Programs
(2) Over heads 

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount spent 
Direct 

or through 
Implementing 

Agency 

Sl.
No.

Health

Promoting / 
Preventing   
Health care

Bengaluru Rs. 96,10,000/-

Rs. 31,69,000/-

Rs. 50,14,000/-

Rs. 14,22,000/-

- M/s. Bangalore 
Medical College and 
Research Institute

M/s.Kidwai 
Memorial Institute 

of Oncology, 
Bangalore.

And

Students of 
Dr. Hardikar 
Bharath Seva 
Dala School. 

01

01 A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy 
including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the 
web-link to the CSR Policy and projects and 
programs

Composition of the CSR Committee

Average Net profits of the Company  for the last 
three Financial Years

Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of  the amount as 
in item 3 above) 

Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year

a. Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year

b.  Amount unspent, if any,

c. Manner in which the amount spent during 
Financial Year is detailed below

As stated above

The CSR Committee Consist of 
Sri. I. S. N. Prasad,  IAS Chariman & also
Sri. Arvind Shrivastava, IAS, Managing 
Director (upto 16.06.2017) as members 

of the Committee

Rs. 48.05 Crores

Rs. 96,10,000

a)  Rs. 96.05 Crores

b)  Rs. 00.05 

02

03

04

05

( This was due to rounding
of. However, this amount
will be spent in the next year)

Providing 
Uniforms, text 

books note 
books, shoes, 
caps  to the 
students of 

Dr.Hardikar 
Bharath Seva 
Dala School  

and  also 
Mid-day meals 

provided to 
the them 

through Akshaya 
Patra, ISKON

RESPONSIBILITY  STATEMENT :

“ The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in Compliance with the CSR Objectives 
and Policy of the Corporation.”

      Sd/-  Sd/-
           M. S. SRIKAR, IAS                                                 I. S. N. PRASAD, IAS

MANAGING DIRECTOR                                                  CHAIRMAN
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31. COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India, has given “Nil Comments” under Sec.143(6)(b)of 
stthe Companies Act, 2013, on the Accounts of the Corporation for the year ended 31  March 2017.

32.  EXPLANATION / COMMENTS OF THE BOARD ON THE QUALIFICATION/ 

RESERVATION MADE BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS 

As required Under Sub Section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, the explanation / 

comments furnished by the Board in respect of the observations made by the Statutory Auditors is 

enclosed in Annexure- II. 

33. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of the Annual Return of the Company as required Under Section 92(3) of the Companies 

Act 2013 is annexed herewith as Annexure – I to this report. 

34. ANNUAL REPORT:

Annual Report containing inter-alia Audited Annual Accounts, Directors' Report, Auditors' 

Report and other important information is circulated to the members and others entitled thereto. 

Annual Report is displayed on the Corporation's website .
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ANNEXURE –I  TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FORM NO. MGT - 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2017

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

1. CIN U01551KA2003SGC032033

2. Registration Date 02.06.2003

3. Name of the Company M/s. Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Ltd.,

4. Category/Sub-category of Private Limited Company – limited by shares 

the Company Government Company

5. Address of the Registered office  & M/s. Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Ltd., 

contact details 4th Floor, TTMC Building, ''A" Block 

BMTC Building, K.H. Road, Shanthinagar 

Bangalore,  560027,  Karnataka INDIA

Phone # 080- 22483636 / 

Fax  # 22483645 / 22113106

6. Whether listed company -NO-

7. Name, Address & contact details 

of the Registrar & Transfer Agent, -Not applicable-

if any 

I.     Registration & Other Details 

Sl. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the %  to total turnover 

No. products / services Product/service of the company

1 Canalization of Liquor and Spirit 

in   Karnataka   State  as  per  the                –                –

Excise Policy of the Government 

of Karnataka  

II.   PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities  

       Contributing 10% or more of the Total turn-over of the company shall be stated)
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III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - Nil 

IV.   SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 
Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

A. Promoters        

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/ HUF

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s) NIL 119500 119,500 100% NIL 119500 119,500 100% NIL

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI

f) Any other
MD NIL 250 250 100% NIL 250 250 100% NIL 
Director 250 250 250 250

Total  
shareholding 
of Promoter (A) NIL 1,20,000 1,20,000 100% NIL 1,20,000 1,20,000 100% NIL 

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year[As on 31-March-2016]

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year[As on 31-March-2017] % Change

during
the year Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of 
Total 

Shares

B. Public Share
holding NIL

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture 
   Capital Funds

f) Insurance 
Companies

g) FIIs

h) Foreign 
   Venture 
   Capital Funds

I) Others 
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

N
IL
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2. Non-
Institutions NIL 

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

I) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal 
share capital 
upto Rs.1lakh

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal NIL 
share capital 
in excess of 
Rs 1 lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Non Resident 
Indians

Overseas 
Corporate 
Bodies

Foreign 
Nationals

Clearing 
Members

Trusts

Foreign 
Bodies-DR

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs NIL 

Grand 
Total (A+B+C)

N
IL
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B)    Shareholding of Promoter-

SN
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

% change 
in share
holding 
during 

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

%of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbered 

to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

%of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbered 

to total 
shares

Shareholder's 
Name

1 NIL

C)    Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) – There was 
          no change.

D)    Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 
         (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable 

SN
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

Particulars

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

NIL

SN
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

For Each of the Top 10
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

NIL
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E)    Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:  Not Applicable

SN
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

Shareholding of each Directors and each 
Key Managerial Personnel

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Shareholding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment 
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the beginning of the year

At the end of the year

NIL

V)     INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but 
          not due for payment.  NIL 

Secured 
Loans 
excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 
year

I) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

* Addition

* Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of  the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

N
IL
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VI     REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A.      Remuneration to Managing Director

SN
Name of MD 

Sri.Arvind Shrivastava, IAS
Total 

AmountParticulars of Remuneration

Gross salary

Salary fixed by the GoK

Managing 
Director          

Whole time
Director

TotalManager1

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 
1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat  Equity

Commission
-  as % of profit
-  others, specify…

Others, please specify

Total (A)

 Ceiling as per the Act

- -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

- - - -

1,12,414/- - -

- - - -

1,12,414/- 1,12,414/-

1,12,414/-

B.      Remuneration to other directors

SN Name of Directors
Total 

AmountParticulars of Remuneration

Independent Directors 

-------- -------- --------

1

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration 

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

--------

2

3

4

5

2

N
IL
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C.      REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/

          MANAGER/WTD

SN Key Managerial PersonnelParticulars of Remuneration

Gross salary

CEO CS TotalCFO

1

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat  Equity

Commission
-  as % of profit
-  others, specify…

Others, please specify
(reimbursement of medical, telephone, 
Conveyance etc.,)

Total (A)

 9,90,900/-  9,90,900/-

1,21,972/- 1,21,972/-

11,12,872/- 11,12,872/-

VII.      PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:   NIL 

Type
Brief 
Description

Section of the 
Companies Act

Details of Penalty/ 
Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority
[RD / NCLT/ 
COURT]

Appeal made,
if any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty  

Punishment  

Compounding  

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty  

Punishment  

Compounding  

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty  

Punishment  

Compounding  

I.S.N.Prasad, IAS 
Chairman 

N
IL

N
IL

N
IL

Place : Bengaluru 
Date : 14-09-2017
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KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES CORPORATION LIMITED

Explanations / Comments of the Board to the Statutory Auditors report on the 

Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2016-17

Sl. 

No.
Qualifications of the Statutory Auditors Comments / Explanation of the Board

Note No. 1 (i) pertaining to Service tax 

assessments. The Corporation has not made 

adequate provision in respect of disputed 

statutory dues on account of matters pending 

before various authorities. However, the 

outcome of the matters presently cannot be 

determined and no provision for any liability 

that may result has been made in the 

financial statements.

The Corporation has contested the demand of the Service 

Tax Department,  that it is not bound to pay service tax on 

margin received from the distilleries/suppliers on the 

ground that it is carrying on purely trading activity and 

hence does not come under the purview  of “Business 

Auxiliary Services”.  

Four Appeals in respect of service tax on margin were 
st

pending before the CESTAT.  On 31  May, 2016, 3 

appeals out of 4 appeals had come up for final hearing and 

after hearing both the parties the Hon'ble Judge reserved 

the judgement.  The orders are still awaited.

st thFurther, for the period 1  Oct, 2011 to 30  Sept, 2012, the 

Joint Commissioner, Service Tax-I, Bangalore passed the 

order-in-original, confirming that the activity taken up by 

the Corporation would come under the “Business 

Auxiliary Services” and demanded the payment of 

Service Tax of  Rs.1,24,22,414/- plus the penalty. 

Aggrieved on the orders of the Joint Commissioner, the 

Corporation filed an Appeal before the Commissioner of 

Central Excise (Appeals-II) Bangalore. The Commissioner 

of Service Tax (Appeals) heard the matter and decided to 

keep the appeal in abeyance till the earlier appeals 

pending before the Hon'ble CESTAT are disposed off.

As the Corporation is confident of obtaining favourable 

orders, no provision has been made in the books of 

accounts. 

The detailed status of the cases are furnished in the notes 

on accounts vide Note No. 1) Claim against the 

Corporation not acknowledged as debt: (i) Service 

Tax Assessments.

1.

Note No. 1 (ii) pertaining to Income Tax 

Assessments. The Corporation has not made 

adequate provision in respect of disputed 

statutory dues on account of matters pending 

before various authorities. However, the 

outcome of the matters presently cannot be 

The Corporation has been filing its Return of Income with 

the Income Tax Department regularly since the beginning 

of its operations.  The returns filed included payment of 

Privilege Fee to the State Government which was 

deducted as 'business expenditure' for the purpose of 

arriving at the Income of the Corporation.  

2.
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Sl. 

No.
Qualifications of the Statutory Auditors Comments / Explanation of the Board

determined and no provision for any 

Liability that may result has been made in 

the financial statements.

From the Assessment year 2009-10 onwards the 

department had disallowed the payment of privilege fee 

in addition to the other disallowances and passed the 

assessment orders for Asst. Years.2009-10, 2010-11, 

2011-12 and 2012-13.  The other disallowances are 

disallowance u/s.14A of the IT Act, provision towards ex-

gratia payment and increase in share capital.

Aggrieved on the orders of the Assessing Officer for the 

above Asst. years, the Corporation had filed Writ 
thPetitions in the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka.  On 18  

Feb, 2016 the above WPs had come up for final hearing.  

The Judge after hearing both the parties allowed the WP in 

favour of the Corporation in so far as the Privilege Fee 

payment was concerned and in respect of other 

disallowances the Judge remanded back to the Assessing 

Officer to re-examine the same and pass the orders after 

affording an opportunity of hearing to the assessee.

While giving effect to the High Court's Writ Petition 

order, the Assessing officer passed the revised 

Assessment orders for the Assessment years 2009-10 to 

2012-2013 which resulted in refunds except for the A.Y 

2011-2012.  However, the Corporation has filed appeal 

with CIT (Appeals) for other disallowances in respect of 

all the above assessment years.

The Writ Appeals filed by the IT Department in the 

Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka against all the above 

Writ Petitions were dismissed.

For the Assessment year 2013-2014, the Corporation had 

filed Writ Petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka 

against the orders of the Assessing Officer and the same 

has been disposed off in favour of the Corporation. The 

Assessing officer is yet to pass revised Assessment order 

giving effect to the order of the Hon'ble High Court.  

In respect of A.Y 2014-2015 the Corporation has filed 

appeal with CIT (Appeals) , Bangalore against the orders of 

the Assessing Officer for disallowance of outstanding loan 

to GOK of Rs.2,53,19,000/-, unadjusted balance payable to 

distilleries of Rs.4,35,21,000 and  notional expenditure 

arrived by the AO towards exempted income  u/s 14A in 

accordance with rule 8D of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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Sl. 

No.
Qualifications of the Statutory Auditors Comments / Explanation of the Board

In respect of assessment for previous years, viz, for Asst. 

Year 2007-08 and 2008-09 the department resorted to re-

opening of the completed assessments by invoking the 

provisions of section 263 of the IT Act, 1961.  

The details of the status of each assessment year have 

been furnished in the notes on accounts vide Note No.1 

(ii) Income Tax Assessments-Status of Income Tax Cases.

As the Corporation is confident of obtaining favourable 

orders in all the above cases, no provision has been made 

in the books of accounts for the demands of the IT 

department. 

Note No.3: Excess Input Tax credit 

refundable from Government of Karnataka 

is not in line with the returns filed with the 

department. As per the policy of the 

Company the payment to the distilleries          

(Export suppliers) will be made only when 

the refund is received from the Department. 

However, the refund pertaining to FY 2007-

2008 was disallowed to the extent of 

Rs.59,09,850/- in the previous year due to 

non-payment of taxes. Subsequently the 

supplier has paid taxes to the department. 

The refund of export incentive order is yet to 

be received from Commercial Tax 

department.

While passing the Assessment Order for the year 2007-08 

for refund of VAT incentives, the Assistant Commissioner 
th

vide his order dated 4  March 2009 adjusted a sum of 

Rs.59,09,850 as ineligible input tax rebate in respect of 

M/s Wilson Distilleries out of the amount due in respect of 

other distilleries.  The Corporation has not claimed any 

VAT incentive in respect of transactions relating to M/s 

Wilson Distilleries and has paid their invoice value 

including the applicable VAT.  The Corporation has 

contested the adjustments made by the Tax Authorities 

while refunding the VAT incentives and requested for 

release of the amount of Rs.59,09,850 so adjusted as the 

same is required to be passed on to other distilleries who 

are eligible for the input credit. Since the dealer has 

already paid the taxes to the Government, we have 

requested the Joint Commissioner of Commercial Taxes 
th(Admin) vide our letter no. KSBCL/RS/2007-08 dated 5  

May, 2017 to refund the amount.  As and when the 

disallowed incentive is received from the department the 

same would be passed on to the suppliers. 

In case of RS division sales (Spirit) the 

company is liable to pay VAT/CST on the 

margin amount on the basis of  taxability of 

the transaction and the same is being 

collected by the Company from the buyer 

and being remitted to the commercial tax 

authorities. However at the time of making 

the payment to the creditors the company is 

once again deducting taxes from the RS 

creditors and the same is kept under the head 

In the RS division, the Corporation is dealing with the 

purchase  and sale of Rectified Spirit (RS), Denatured 

Spirit (DS) and ethanol. Out of the above, RS is exempted 

from VAT and Ethanol comes under E1 sales. Only DS 

attracts VAT. The transaction involving differential tax 

arises in respect of DS exports wherein 5.50% VAT is 

collected from the local suppliers and is being exported to 

outside the state buyers levying CST @ 2% against 

submission of 'C' Forms. The Corporation also collects 

Margin and CST on Margin from the buyer which is 

4.
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Sl. 

No.
Qualifications of the Statutory Auditors Comments / Explanation of the Board

creditors. Hence, to the extent of deduction 

of taxes the sundry creditors are understated. 

deducted while making payment to the suppliers. 

However at the time of release of export incentive to the 

supplier CST on Margin, which was deducted earlier is 

also included in the amount that is being refunded to the 

supplier. Hence, there is no understating of amount due to 

the Creditors (Suppliers). 

Note No. 4 The total outstanding liability 

towards Sundry Creditors (RS Division) 

is Rs.3137.61 lakhs as on 31.3.2017. 

Based on the reconciled report submitted 

by the Internal Auditors,  out of the 40 

distilleries 21 distilleries are having 

unadjusted credit balance amounting to 

Rs.296.02 lakhs. A suitable decision 

regarding this matter is yet to be taken by 

the management.

It could be seen from the books of the Accounts of the 

Corporation that a sum of Rs.31,37,60,978.21 was 

outstanding and payable to the RS suppliers as at the end 
stof 31  March 2017.  

An exercise was made to identify the year-wise break up 

for the above outstanding in respect of each supplier by 

reviewing the ledger accounts of the individual suppliers.  

Considering the amount payable towards export 

incentives for the transactions relating to the years 2007-

08 to 2016-17 amounting to Rs.9,48,07,737.93 and the 

payment due towards current period transactions 

amounting to Rs.18,93,51,473.04 the total amount 

payable works to Rs. 28,41,59,210.97.  As against the 

above the total sundry creditors outstanding as at the end 
stof 31  March 2017 based on the books of accounts was to 

the extent of Rs.31,37,60,978.21 indicating a difference 

of Rs. 2,96,01,767.24. 

The difference of Rs. 2,96,01,767.24 was mainly due to 

adjustment of payment to be made by the Corporation 

towards taxes and adjusted out of the refund due to the 

suppliers. 

This amount is  either required to be refunded to the 

concerned suppliers or in the absence of any claim from 

any of the parties to be withdrawn from the books of 

accounts of the Corporation. 

A decision on the above is required to be taken after 

placing the matter before the Board.

5. Note No. 8 pertaining to “Confirmation of 

balances” of Sundry Debtors, Sundry 

Creditors, Advances to Distilleries, 

Earnest Money Deposits and Other 

Advances and Balances of Retailers.

In this regard, Letters seeking confirmation 

of balances as on 31.03.2017 in respect of all 

The Corporation had sent letters of confirmation of 

balances to the Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors,   

Advances to Distilleries, Earnest Money Deposits, other 

Advances and Balance of Retailers with a request to 

confirm the same within stipulated time mentioned in the 

letter failing which it would be deemed that the balances 

as per the Corporation's books of accounts hold good.
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Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, and 

Advances to Distilleries, Other Advances 

and EMDs have been sent and requested 

them to send the confirmation of balances to 

the statutory auditors directly. Letters 

seeking confirmation of balances in respect 

of all Retailers have been sent through the 

concerned Depot Managers and requested 

them to send the confirmation of balances to 

the Corporation through the concerned 

Depot Managers to monitor the same Depot 

wise closely since the numbers involved 

were huge.

a) The Corporation since has received the 

confirmation of balances from 5877 

nos. out of 13502 total Retailers 

through the concerned Depot 

Managers of IML Depots.  The 

Confirmations of balances to the extent 

received from the retailers are matching 

with the Books of the Corporation.

b)   We, the auditors directly have received 

03 Nos. of replies from 273 nos. of 

Distilleries for both IML and RS 

Divisions put together out of which 

none are in line with the books of 

accounts. The Balances in respect of 

Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, 

Advances to Distilleries, Retailers and 

Others relating to loans, other advances, 

and EMD's are subject to Confirma-

tions and / or Reconciliations if any.

In this scenario, we are not in a position to 

ascertain the impact of the unconfirmed 

distilleries account balances on the financial 

position of the Corporation.

In response to the said letters, a few Sundry Creditors 

have responded, which have been verified by the 

Statutory Auditors. 

Since many of the distilleries/retailers have not responded 

to the Corporation's request for confirmation of balances 

within the stipulated time frame, it would be deemed that 

they are in agreement with the balances as per the books 

of the Corporation.

As such there may not be any significant / material impact 

on the financial position of the Corporation.

Note No. 16 Unadjusted credit balance of 

IML distilleries of Rs 435.21 Lakhs 

pertaining to the period prior to 2006. A 

suitable decision regarding this matter is yet 

to be taken by the management.

th st thThe subject was discussed in detail in the 44 , 51  , 54  
th

and 60  Board meeting.   

thThe matter was again placed before the 5  Audit 
thCommittee meeting held on 26  March, 2016 to take a 

final decision in the matter. 

6.
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The Audit Committee after discussing the subject in detail 
and after considering all issues involved  particularly the 
period of 3 years has not elapsed, felt to retain the amount 
of Rs.435.21 crs  in the unadjusted credit balance account 
and review thereafter.

Though these balances related to in-operative distilleries 
there may be claim from the distilleries which might have 
taken over these distilleries on a future date and in such 
case the Company may end up with paying Income tax on 
such income and also liable to refund the amount due to 
theses distilleries. Hence, as a prudence policy to check 
any claim from the distilleries, the same was continued in 
the unadjusted credit balance to complete the period of 3 
years from the date of decision taken by the Board.

As the 3 years period elapses during the year 2017-18, 
action will be initiated to transfer  these amounts to 
miscellaneous income as suggested by the audit after 
placing the same before the Board. This has also been 
disclosed vide note no.16 under NOTES ON 
ACCOUNTS

Place: Bangalore

Date: 14.09.2017

I.S.N. PRASAD, I.A.S

CHAIRMAN
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENT OF KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES CORPORATION  LIMITED,

BANGALORE, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017.

The preparation of Financial Statements of Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Limited, 

Bangalore, for the year ended 31 March 2017 in accordance with the financial reporting framework 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) 

of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under Section 143 of the 

Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 

143(10) of the Act.  This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated: 02.08.2017.

I on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit 

under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the Financial Statements of Karnataka State Beverages 

Corporation Limited, for the year ended 31 March 2017. This supplementary audit has been carried 

out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited 

primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of 

some of the accounting records. I have no further comments to offer upon or supplement to the statutory 

auditor's report under Section 143(6) (b) of Act.

Bengaluru
Date : 08-09-2017
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For and on behalf of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(BIJIT KUMAR MUKHERJEE)

ACCOUNTANT GENERAL 
(ECONOMIC & REVENUE SECTOR AUDIT)

KARNATAKA, BENGALURU
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Dhariwal & Sreenivas
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

# 10, (Old No. 144) South Park Road,

(Opp.Seshadripuram College) Nehru Nagar, 

Bangalore - 560 020

Tel : +91-80-42479333/23445851/23310591

Fax : +91-80-42479302/23367564/42479300

e-mail : dns@dnsconsulting.net www.dnsconsulting.net

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Limited 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES 

CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these  financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 

Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 

of these financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 

are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. 

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
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assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the 

financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company's Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

qualified audit opinion. 

Basis of Qualified Opinion

We draw attention to the following notes in Notes to Accounts

1. Note No1 (i): Pertaining to Service tax assessments. The Corporation has not made adequate 

provision in respect of disputed statutory dues on account of matters pending before various 

authorities. However, the outcome of the matters presently cannot be determined and no provision 

for any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements.

2. Note No1 (ii): Pertaining to Income Tax Assessments. The Corporation has not made adequate 

provision in respect of disputed statutory dues on account of matters pending before various 

authorities. However, the outcome of the matters presently cannot be determined and no provision 

for any Liability that may result has been made in the financial statements.

3. Note No3: Excess Input Tax credit refundable from Government of Karnataka is not in line with 

the returns filed with the department. As per the policy of the company the payment to the 

distilleries (Export Suppliers) will be made only when the refund is received from the Department. 

However, the refund pertaining to FY 2007-08 was disallowed to the extent of Rs.59,09,850/- in 

previous year due to non- payment of taxes. Subsequently the supplier has paid taxes to the 

department. The refund of export incentive order is yet to be received from Commercial Tax 

department.

4. In case of RS division sales (Spirit) the company is liable to pay VAT/ CST on the margin amount 

on the basis of taxability of the transaction and the same is being collected by the company from the 

buyer and being remitted to the commercial tax authorities. However at the time of making 

payment to the creditors the company is once again deducting taxes from the RS creditors and the 

same is kept under the head creditors. Hence, to the extent of deduction of taxes the sundry 

creditors are understated. 

Note No. 4 The total outstanding liability towards Sundry Creditors (RS Division) is Rs.3137.61 

lakhs as on 31.3.2017. Based on the reconciled report submitted by the Internal Auditors,  out of the 

40 distilleries 21 distilleries are having unadjusted credit balance amounting to Rs.296.02 lakhs. A 

suitable decision regarding this matter is yet to be taken by the management.

5. Note No 8: Pertaining to “Confirmation of balances” of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, 

Advances to Distilleries, Earnest Money Deposits and Other Advances and Balances of Retailers.

In this regard, Letters seeking confirmation of balances as on 31.03.2017 in respect of all Sundry 

Debtors, Sundry Creditors, and Advances to Distilleries, Other Advances and EMDs have been 

sent and requested them to send the confirmation of balances to the statutory auditors directly. 

Letters seeking confirmation of balances in respect of all Retailers have been sent through the 

concerned Depot Managers and requested them to send the confirmation of balances to the 

Corporation through the concerned Depot Managers to monitor the same Depot wise closely since 

the numbers involved were huge.     
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(a) The Corporation since has received the confirmation of balances from 5877 nos. out of 

13502 total Retailers through the concerned Depot Managers of IML Depots.  The 

Confirmations of balances to the extent received from the retailers are matching with the 

Books of the Corporation.

(b) We, the auditors directly have received 03 Nos. of replies from 273 nos. of Distilleries for 

both IML and RS Divisions put together out of which none are in line with the books of 

accounts. The Balances in respect of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Advances to 

Distilleries, Retailers and Others relating to loans, other advances, and EMD's are subject to 

Confirmations and / or Reconciliations if any.

In this scenario, we are not in a position to ascertain the impact of the unconfirmed distilleries 

account balances on the financial position of the Corporation.

6. Note No. 16 Pertaining to unadjusted credit balance of IML distilleries Of Rs 435.21 Lakhs 

pertaining to the period prior to 2006. A suitable decision regarding this matter is yet to be taken by 

the management.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the 

effects/possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” paragraph 1 to 6 above , the 

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2017, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 , we give in the 'Annexure- A', a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As per the directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General  in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, 

we give in 'Annexure – B', a statement on matters specified therein

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the cash flow statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2017, taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from 

being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of the 

company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate report in 

'Annexure-C'.

(g) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its financial statements as regards its holding 

and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification S.O. 3407(E) dated the 

November 8, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from November 8, 2016 to 

December 30, 2016. Based on audit procedures performed and the representations provided to us by 

the management we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts 

maintained by the Company and as produced to us by management.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has not disclosed the impact of pending Service Tax litigations mentioned in 

Note 1(i), Income Tax litigations mentioned in Note 1(ii) and  VAT issues mentioned in Note 

3 on its financial position in its financial statements as of March 31, 2017; 

ii. The Company has made provision in its financial statements, as required under the 

applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term 

contracts;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  

For Dhariwal& Sreenivas

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No. : 007197S

Sreenivas Babu Penugonda

Partner

M.No. :028804

Place: Bangalore

Date : 02/08/2017
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of 

even date to the financial statements of the company for the year ended March 31, 2017:

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the 

books and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge 

and belief, we report the following:

I. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the 

management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such 

verification.

(c) The title deeds of all immovable properties of the Company shown under the 

fixed assets schedule are held in the name of the Company.

ii.  Purchases are accounted to the extent of actual quantity sold as such inventories held at 

the depot which is not sold has not been accounted in books of accounts of the company. 

In order to ensure the inventory held is in accordance with records of the company the 

management appointed a CA firms to verify the stock at varies places on a monthly 

basis. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the discrepancies 

noticed were not material.

iii. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms or 

other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

iv. The company has not given any loans, investments or guarantees to which the 

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply. Accordingly, 

Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public as defined under section 73 

to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

Paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 

not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the business carried out by the Company.

vii. (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of account, the Company is regular 

in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 

income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, wealth tax, excise duty, 

custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it and no 
stundisputed statutory dues were outstanding as at 31  March 2017 for a period of 

more than six months from the date they became payable.
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The Company has personnel deputed from other state government organizations, in 
respect of whom all statutory payments with regard to Provident fund, Employees' State 
Insurance, etc. have been made by parent organizations.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the following dues of 
Service tax and Income tax have not been deposited by the company on account of 
disputes:

Sl. Name of the Nature of disputed claims Amount Period to which Forum where
No. Statute Rs. in amount relates pending

Lakhs

1 Finance Act Service Tax on demurrages 1,132.53
2005-06

2 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 4,125.03 04/2006 to CESTAT
09/2007

3 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 324.89 10/2007 to CESTAT
09/2008

4 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 2,847.02 10/2008 to CESTAT
09/2009

5 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 4,322.08 10/2009 to CESTAT
09/2010

6 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 2,086.78 10/2010 to CESTAT
09/2011

7 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 124.22 10/2011 to Commissioner Central 
09/2016 Excise (Appeals)

Bangalore

8 Finance Act Service Tax on margin money 837.50 04/2014 to Commissioner of 
09/2016 service tax-1, Bangalore-1

9 Income Tax Act  Income Tax on Privilege fee 4.97 2003-2004 to Before  CIT (Appeals)
paid to GOK (Financial year)

10 Income Tax Act Income Tax 219.18 2012-13 High Court 
(Financial Year)

2003-04 to CESTAT

viii. Based on our audit procedures we are of the opinion that the company has not defaulted 
in repayment of dues to its banks, financial institutions, Government or debenture 
holders.

ix. The company has not raised any moneys  by  way  of  initial  public  offer  or further  
public  offer  and term loans during the year. Paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company.

x. Based upon the audit procedures performed, we report that no fraud by the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi. The Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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xii. The Company is not a Nidhi company. and therefore paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the company.

xiii. In our opinion, the company has not entered into any related party transactions within 
the meaning of section 188 of the Act during the year therefore paragraph 3(xiii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the company. 

Further, in our opinion, the provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable as the
company is a private limited company 

xiv. The  company  has not made  any  preferential  allotment  or  private  placement  of  
shares  or  fully or  partly convertible  debentures  during  the  year. Accordingly, 
Paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

xv. The  company  has not entered  into  any  non-cash transactions  with directors  or  
persons  connected  with them. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xvi. In our opinion the company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not 
applicable.

For  Dhariwal & Sreenivas 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 007197S

Sreenivas Babu Penugonda
Partner
M. No.: 028804 
Place : Bangalore 
Date: 02-08-2017
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Sl
No.

Directions Audit Comments 

If the Company has been selected for disinves-
tment, a complete status report in terms of 
valuation of Assets (including intangible assets 
and land) and Liabilities (including Committed & 
General Reserves) may be examined including the 
mode and present stage of disinvestment process.

The Company has not been selected for 
disinvestment during the year

1

Please report whether there are any cases of 
waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc., if yes 
the reasons there for and the amount involved. 

There was no of waiver/write off of debts/ 
loans/interest. 

2

Whether proper records are maintained for  
inventories lying with third parties & assets 
received as gift from Govt. or other authorities 

Not Applicable. During our course of audit we 
have not come across any incident where the 

rd
inventory was lying. with 3  party and any 
assets received as gift from Govt. etc.

3

A report on age-wise analysis of pending legal 
arbitration cases including the reasons of 
pendency and existence/effectiveness of a 
monitoring mechanism for expenditure on all 
legal cases(foreign and local) may be given. 

Refer annexure to audit report (Clause – vii 

b)of annexure A to the auditor's report & also 

note forming part of Balance sheet note no 

20(a)(i)(b)   (liability against PF).

4

Sl
No.

Directions Audit Comments 

Whether there is effective system for recovery of 
dues

Yes there is effective system for recovery of 
dues 

a

Examine the system of effective utilization 
Loans/Grant-in aid /subsidy. List the cases of  
diversions of funds. 

There was no loans/ Grant-in aid /subsidy 
during the Year. 

b

If the audited entity as computerized its operations 
or part of it, assess and report, how much of the 
data in the company is in electronic format, which 
of the area such as accounting, sales personnel 
information, payroll, inventory etc, have been 
computerized and the company has evolved 
proper security policy for data/ software/ 
hardware? 

All the areas such as financial accounting, sales 
accounting, personnel information, and 
payroll, Materials / Inventory Management 
have been computerized. However accounting 
on Rectified Spirit is in different software. 

The Company has got well defined security 
Policy for Data, Hardware &  software. 

c

Additional company specific Directions: 

Annexure B -Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act 2013
M/s. Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Limited for FY 2016-17

For  Dhariwal & Sreenivas 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 007197S

Sreenivas Babu Penugonda
Partner
M. No.: 028804 
Place : Bangalore 
Date: 02-08-2017
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Annexure– C to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the 
Financial Statements of Karnataka State Beverages Corporation Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Karnataka State Beverages 
Corporation Limited (“'the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act,2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,  both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning  of  Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Unmodified opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on  “the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For  Dhariwal & Sreenivas 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 007197S

Sreenivas Babu Penugonda
Partner
M. No.: 028804 
Place : Bangalore 
Date: 02-08-2017
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KARNATAKA STATE BEVERAGES CORPORATION LIMITED

Head Office : Bangalore

I.   SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING  POLICIES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FORMING PART 
ST

OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31  MARCH 2017 AND PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT 
STFOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31  MARCH 2017

1) Basis for Preparation of Financial Statements:

a) The Corporation has adopted mercantile system of accounting except in case of demurrage 

income in respect of slow moving stocks from in-operative distilleries which is accounted 

on cash basis.

b) Financial Statements have been prepared as per historical cost convention and as per 

revised  Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Accounting policies not specifically referred to are consistent with the Indian Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).

d) The Segmental Reporting is carried out as per AS-17. 

2) Property, Plant and Equipment:

a) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation /  amortization.           

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are accounted on the basis of cost of acquisition or 

construction, inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and installation charges. 

c) Leasehold improvements are stated at cost less accumulated  depreciation  / amortization.

d) Intangible assets are accounted on the basis of cost of acquisition.

3) Capital Work in Progress:

Capital Expenditure is accounted as capital work in progress until the same is certified as 

completed/commissioned for the purpose of capitalization.

4) Depreciation:

a) In general, depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is computed using straight-line 

method over the residual useful life specified in Schedule-II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Computer Software classified as intangible assets is being amortized over a period of three 

years being the estimated useful life of the asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized 

over a period of three years, in respect of HO. However, Partitions / Cubicles constructed 

in the depots are classified as Furniture & Fixtures and depreciated accordingly.

b) Depreciation in respect of additions / deletions is charged proportionately for the period 

from the date of its additions/deletions.

  

NOTE NO. 30
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c) As per the guidelines of the Companies Act,2013 while computing Depreciation residual 

value at the rate of 5% is considered. 

5) Reserves:

thThe Corporation has the policy of transferring an amount at the rate of 1/10 of profit after tax to 

General Reserve every financial year as per Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6) Accounting of Purchases and Sales:

a) Accounting of Purchases:

i) Indian Made Liquor [IML]: Manufacturer /Supplier places an offer to supply 

liquor based on demand prevailing in various locations. Thereafter, an order for 

supply (OFS) is issued to the manufacturer / supplier. Goods so supplied are stacked 

in the depot of the Corporation and the ownership of these stocks continues to vest 

with the manufacturer / supplier. Manufacturers / Suppliers undertake responsibility 

for creating demand for the goods supplied to the Corporation. Purchases are 

immediately booked after the sales are effected. Price for the supply from the 

manufacturer / supplier is arrived after reducing the margin from the sales.

ii) Spirit: The Excise Commissioner, Karnataka, authorizes the buyers to procure their 

requirements from the specific supplier. Upon remittance of the sale value of the 

supply by the buyers (except Oil Companies) orders are placed by the Corporation on 

the suppliers so authorized.

b) Accounting of Sales / Credit Policy of Corporation:

i) IML: The Corporation is authorized by State Excise Department to issue stocks to 

retail licensees only after receipt of full value of the goods.

ii) Spirit: As per the Corporation's policy on sale of ethanol to Oil Marketing 

Companies (OMCs), 30 days credit is allowed.  

7) Income recognition:

a) Sales: Sales are recognized on invoicing. Sales do not include inter-depot transfers in case 

of IML. Spirit manufacturers of the State should sell the entire production to the 

Corporation. The Corporation in turn after adding its margin sells the same to its buyers.

However, in respect of captive consumption within their own premises by the spirit 

manufacturers, the Corporation's margin is excluded. 

b) Interest income: Interest earned on fixed deposits with Banks & advances to distilleries is 

accounted on accrual basis.

c) Dividend income: Dividend earned on the investments made in debt based short term 

mutual funds is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.

d) Penalty on escorts:  The Corporation is levying penalty for non-utilization of escort 

services wherever there is delay in loading and unloading and also on cancellation of OFS. 
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e) Liquor Trade Data charges : The Corporation is providing / sharing the data related to the 

sales, stock, etc., to the manufacturers / suppliers for which liquor trade data charges are 

collected, during the process of payment to suppliers on accrual basis.

f) Authorization charges : The Corporation is collecting authorization charges on the sale of 

ethanol from December - 2016.

8) Personnel :

The Corporation is having personnel deputed from State Government and other Government 

organizations. The Corporation has made contributions towards Leave Salary, Pension, 

Provident Fund and Gratuity to the respective parent organizations from time to time in respect of 

these personnel. Hence, actuarial valuation of such liabilities for accounting is not carried out.  In 

respect of contract employees, the eligible PF/ESI amounts have been remitted to respective 

authorities and eligible actuarial gratuity amount has been provided.

9) Income Tax  & Deferred Tax Liability/Asset:

a) Income Tax:

The Provision for current tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961 is computed and made after  taking 

into consideration the benefits admissible under the relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b) Deferred Tax Liability/Asset:

Deferred Income-tax resulting from timing difference between book and taxable profits is 

accounted for using the rate and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as at the date 

of balance sheet. The deferred tax asset resulting from the differences between book and taxable 

profit is set off against the Deferred Tax Liability and the excess Deferred Tax Asset is not 

recognized as there is no reasonable certainty that the same will be realized.

10) Contingencies & Provisions:

Contingent liabilities are provided for only if there are reasonable prospects of maturing of such 

liabilities.

11) Investments:

The investments in debt based short term mutual funds are carried at cost.

12) Cash flow statement:

Cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in the 

Accounting Standard-3.
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II.    NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1) Claims against the Corporation not acknowledged as debt;

(i)  Service Tax Assessments;

Service Tax on Margin :

The Additional Director General of Central Excise, Intelligence, Bangalore issued a show cause 

notice on 18/01/2007 stating that the activities of the Corporation and the services provided by 

KSBCL are classifiable under the category of “Business Auxiliary Services (BAS)” and therefore is 
st stliable to pay service tax on the gross service value, for the period from 1  July 2003 to 31  March 

2006, amounting to ̀  11,32,52,833/- The Corporation furnished reply substantiating  the activities 

of the Corporation as purely trading activities and does not come under the purview of  BAS. 

Subsequently, on similar grounds the Corporation received two separate show cause notices for 

the payment of service tax for various periods as detailed below: 

For the period:

1. from 1.4.2006   to 30.09.2007    - `   41,25,03,450

2. from 1.10.2007 to 30.09.2008    - `  3,24,88,699

The Corporation filed separate replies to these show cause notices through the Advocate.

The Commissioner of Service Tax passed the Order-in-Original vide Order No.26-28/2009, 

combining all the above three demands aggregating to ` 55,82,44,982/- and confirmed that the 

services provided by KSBCL are classifiable under the category of “Business Auxiliary Services 

(BAS)” and therefore is liable to pay service tax.

Aggrieved on the above Order-in-Original, the Corporation filed an appeal before the CESTAT 

vide Appeal No.ST/805/2009.

A miscellaneous application was filed for out of turn hearing of the stay application against the 

Order in Original No.26-28/2009 dt.29-06-2009 and for waiver of pre-deposit.  On 12.10.2010 

the CESTAT pronounced the interim judgment stating as under:-

“On mere perusal of the balance sheets which are filed by the appellant before the statutory 

authorities, we find that the entire balance sheet talks about the profit arrived on purchase and sale 

of liquor. It is also seen from the balance sheet that the appellants have been showing closing 

stock of liquor lying with them as at a particular year end. This would indicate that, the appellant 

is doing trading activity of the liquor in the state of Karnataka as per the Karnataka Government's 

Liquor policy. We find that the appellant has made out a prima-facie case for the waiver of pre-

deposits of amount involved. Thus, application for waiver of pre-deposit of the amounts involved 

is allowed and recovery thereof stayed, till disposal of the appeal.”
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Further, under the category of “Business Auxiliary Services (BAS)” once again the 

Commissioner of Service Tax issued show cause notices for various periods and demanded 

payment of service tax as detailed below: 

a) 01.10.2008 to 30.09.2009    -  ` 28,47,01,583/-

b) 01.10.2009 to 30.09.2010     - ` 43,22,08,173/-

c) 01.10.2010 to 30.09.2011    -  ̀  20,86,77,740/-

The Corporation filed separate replies to the above three show cause notices through the 

Advocate. Subsequently the Corporation received Orders–in-Original for the above period.

Aggrieved on the above Orders the Corporation filed appeals in the prescribed format with the 

CESTAT as detailed below: 

1. Appeal No.ST 1703/2011 for the period 1.10.2008 to 30.09.2009, 

2. Appeal No.ST 331/2012 for the period 01.10.2009 to 30.09.2010  & 

3. Appeal No.ST/25436/2013 for the period 1.10.2010 to 30.09.2011.

For all the above three demands, the Corporation had filed application for waiver of pre-deposit 

while filing the appeals.  The CESTAT after considering the application for waiver of deposit 

ordered that it is a case of purchase and sale of liquor and there is no service involved and 

therefore, service tax is not demandable prima facie. In view of this, the waiver of pre-deposit of 

dues as per the impugned orders were allowed and recovery thereof were stayed till the appeals 

are finally disposed off.

Further, again on similar grounds the Corporation received another show cause notice for the 
st thpayment of service tax of  `1,24,22,414/- for the period 1  Oct, 2011 to 30  Sept, 2012, during 

March, 2013 and the same was replied by the Corporation  through the Advocate.

Developments during the Year:

During October, 2016, the Joint Commissioner of Service Tax granted one more opportunity to 

the Corporation to have the personal hearing before adjudicating the orders.  The Corporation 

submitted letter to the Joint Commissioner with a specific request that the present matter of 

hearing, adjudication, passing of the order, etc, be kept in abeyance till the pending appeals are 

disposed off  by the Hon'ble CESTAT to avoid multiplicity of proceedings as the decision of the 

Hon'ble CESTAT (Tribunal) will have a direct bearing on the decision in the subject show cause.

However, the Joint Commissioner of Service Tax, passed the Orders confirming what was 

mentioned in the Show-cause notice and demanded the payment of `1,24,22,414/- of service 

tax.  In addition, there is a demand for the payment of penalty and interest on the service tax.

Aggrieved on the above orders, the Corporation filed an appeal before the Commissioner of 
st

Central Excise (Appeals), Bangalore on 21  March, 2017.
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th
On 25  May, 2017, the Commissioner of Service Tax, Appeals, Bangalore heard the matter and 

decided to keep the present appeal in abeyance till the earlier appeals pending before the Hon'ble 

CESTAT are disposed off. 

th
Further, again on similar grounds, on 24  April, 2017 the Corporation once again received 

another show-cause notice from the Commissioner of Service Tax-1, Bangalore, demanding the 

tax liability of ` 8,37,49,392/- for the period from April 2014 to Sept, 2016 along with interest 

and penalties as prescribed under the Finance Act.  

The above show-cause notice has been replied by the Corporation through the Advocate and filed 

before the Commissioner of Service Tax -1, Bangalore on 23.05.2017.

Present Status: 

Four appeals that are pending before the Hon'ble  CESTAT, are as detailed below:

From the above 4 appeals, except Sl. No.4, the other 3 appeals had come up for final hearing on 
st31  May, 2016. 

The Hon'ble CESTAT after hearing both the sides has reserved the pronouncement of the orders 

and the orders are awaited. Balance one appeal is yet to be taken up for hearing.

The appeal which was heard recently during May 2017, Appeal No.335/2017/ST,(Amount in 

dispute ` 1.24 crores) is pending before the Commissioner of Central Excise, (Appeals), 

Bangalore, and the same has been kept in abeyance till the CESTAT disposes earlier pending cases.

The show-cause notice received from the Commissioner of Service Tax-1, Bangalore, for the 

period from April 2014 to Sept, 2016 has been replied by the Corporation on 23.05.2017.

Hence, in view of the above, no provision is made in the books of accounts for the service tax 

demands on the margin.

Sl.No. Appeal No. Period Service Tax 
demanded Rs. 

01 ST/805/2009-DB 01-07-2003 to 30-09-2008 55,82,44,982

02 ST/1703/2011-DB    01-10-2008 to 30-09-2009 28,47,01,583

03 ST/331/2012-DB    01-10-2009 to 30-09-2010 43,22,08,173

04 ST/25436/2013-DB     01-10-2010  to 30-09-2011 20,86,77,740

TOTAL 148,38,32,478
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   (ii)        Income Tax assessments -  Status of Income Tax Cases

The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 
total income of  ̀  0.28 crores.

The Assessing Officer (AO) completed the assessment 
by disallowing a portion of the privilege fee of ` 3.50 
crores which was paid to GOK after the closure of the 
financial year and disallowed an amount of ` 55,000/- 
paid towards donation.

Aggrieved on the disallowances made by the AO, the 
Corporation filed an appeal before the CIT (Appeals-I), 
Bangalore.

When the Appeal was in progress, CIT, Bangalore-1 re-
opened the assessment u/s 263 of the IT Act and set 
aside the order of AO and directed AO to make fresh 
assessment.

As per the directions of the CIT, Bangalore-1, the AO 
passed the revised assessment order on 24/12/2009 
after further disallowing provision towards leave 
encashment of ` 8,57,768/- and provision for 
electricity charges of  ̀  1,60,072/-.

In view of the reopen of the completed assessment 
u/s.263 by CIT, Bangalore-1, the appeal filed with the 
CIT (Appeals-I) was dismissed.

Aggrieved by the dismissal of the appeal, the 
Corporation filed an appeal with the Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) which was later dismissed.

The Corporation also filed an IT Appeal in the Hon'ble 
High Court of Karnataka, vide ITA No.102/2012 which 
is yet to be disposed off  by the Hon'ble High Court.

Simultaneously, the Corporation also filed another 
appeal with CIT (Appeals-I) against the revised Asst. 
Order passed by the AO and also for delay condonation 
in filing the appeal.

The delay condonation appeal was dismissed by the 
CIT (Appeals- I). 

(` in crores) 

Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

01 2004-05 `
crores

revised to

1.42

crores 

Balance 

payable

` 4.97

lakhs)

 1.44 `
crores

 1.37
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

02 2007-08 `
crores

 1.73 ` 
crores

1.97

Aggrieved on the above order dismissed by the CIT 
(Appeals-I), the Corporation filed an appeal with ITAT 
for delay condonation.

The ITAT condoned the delay of 782 days and 
remanded the matter to the file of the CIT (A) with a 
direction to dispose off the appeal on the merits after 
giving the assessee a fair opportunity of  hearing. 

The CIT (A) is yet to call up for the hearing.

There are no developments during the year 2016-17.

The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 

total income of  ̀  5.12 crores.

The IT dept. concluded the assessment accepting the 

Return of Income filed by the Corporation.  As there was 

difference in the amount of TDS considered by the dept, 

the Corporation sought rectification of the assessment 

order for which the AO obliged by passing the order for 

refund of ` 20.33 lakhs. As against this refund of 

` 20.33 lakhs, the Corporation received refund for 

` 15.82 lakhs & the balance amount of ̀  4.51 lakhs was 

adjusted against the tax dues for the AY. 2008-09.  

The CIT re-opened the completed assessment under 

provisions of 263 of IT Act and set aside the order 

passed by the AO as he has noticed that the AO had not 

disallowed the payment of Privilege Fee of ` 165.55 

crores paid by the Corporation to the Govt. of 

Karnataka and directed the AO to re-examine and make 

fresh assessment. 

Aggrieved by the order of the CIT, the Corporation 

filed an appeal before ITAT.

Apprehending that the DCIT may pass order before the 

case is heard by the ITAT, the Corporation filed a Writ 

Petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka. 

The Hon'ble High Court while disposing off the order 

directed the ITAT to conclude the hearing & proceeded 

to pass orders before 18/03/2013.
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

The ITAT passed the order setting aside the order of the 
CIT, Bangalore-1 under sec-263 of the IT Act and 
remanded the issue to the file of the Commissioner of 
Income Tax, Bangalore-1 with a direction to reconsider 
the facts of the case de-novo, in light of the amendment 
to sec. 24 of the Karnataka Excise Act, 1965. 

CIT, Bangalore-1 is yet to fix the date of hearing.

There are no developments during the year 2016-17.

03 2008-09 - - The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 
total income of  ̀  29.09 crores.

The  AO completed the assessment & passed order 
determining the total income of the Corporation at 
` 29.80 crores after disallowing exempted income of 
` 46.33 lakhs  u/s 14A & allowing only to the extent of 
50% of the contribution u/s 80G i.e. ` 25 lakhs out of 
` 50 lakhs.

The Corporation filed an application before the 
Assessing Officer for rectification and to set right the 
above anomalies.  Further, the Corporation also paid an 
amount of  ̀  7.63 lakhs to the department under protest 
and ` 4.51 lakhs was adjusted from A.Y. 2007-2008, 
against the total demand of  ̀  12.14 lakhs.  

The Corporation filed an appeal before CIT (Appeals-
I), Bangalore u/s.154 of the IT Act, as the dept. turned 
down the request of the Corporation for revising the 
assessment.

In the meanwhile, Commissioner of Income Tax, 
Bangalore-1, passed order under sec. 263 of the IT Act 
setting aside the order of the AO with regard to the 
admissibility of ` 345.38 crores of Privilege Fee, 
claimed by the Corporation as a business expenditure 
& further directed the AO to re-examine the issue with 
regard to all aspects of the case & to pass a fresh 
assessment order.

Aggrieved on the order of the CIT, Bangalore u/s.263 
of the IT Act, the Corporation filed an appeal before the 
ITAT.
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

Apprehending that the AO may pass order before the 
case is heard by the ITAT, the Corporation also filed a 
Writ Petition in the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka. 

The Hon'ble High Court while disposing of the order 
directed the ITAT to conclude the hearing & proceed to 
pass orders before 18/03/2013.

The ITAT passed the order setting aside the order of the 
CIT, Bangalore-1 under sec-263 of the IT Act and 
remanded the issue to the file of the Commissioner of 
Income Tax, Bangalore-1 with a direction to reconsider 
the facts of the case de-novo, in the light of the 
amendment to sec.24 of the Karnataka Excise Act, 1965. 

CIT, Bangalore-1 is yet to fix the date of hearing.

Further, the appeal filed u/s.154 of the IT Act with the 
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals-4), Bangalore, 
disposed off the same during Sept, 2015 and directed 
the AO to peruse/re-verify for recheck on the 
calculation of disallowance u/s.14A of the IT Act and 
dismissed the other grounds for rectification.

The AO is yet to pass the order giving effect to the 
Order of the CIT-Appeals-4, Bangalore.

There are no developments during the year 2016-17.

The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring 
an income of  ̀  6.61 crores.

The AO passed the assessment order determining the 
income of the Corporation at ` 487.74 crores after 
disallowing privilege fee of  ` 479.36 crores & exem-
pted income of  ̀  41.28 lakhs u/s. 14A  of  the IT Act.

Aggrieved on the orders of the AO, the Corporation 
filed an appeal before the CIT (Appeals) which was 
later dismissed with a direction to the AO to reassess 
the income after considering Sec-14A. of  the Act.

The AO passed the order giving effect to the order of 
the CIT-Appeals, Bangalore with a demand for the 
payment of Income Tax dues.

04 2009-10 - -
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

In the mean time an amount of 76.56 crore was 
recovered by the dept by seizing the bank accounts of 
the Corporation.

Aggrieved by the order of the CIT (Appeals), the 
Corporation filed an appeal before the Income Tax 
Appellate Tribunal.

Apprehending that the Income Tax department may 
take further coercive steps for attaching the bank 
accounts, the Corporation also filed a Writ Petition in 
the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka against the order 
of the AO.

The Hon'ble High Court heard the case & granted 
interim stay & also directed the Corporation to remit 
` 10 crores to the dept.  It also directed ITAT to consider 
the application of the Corporation for stay & dispose of 
the same within 4 weeks from the date of receipt of the 
court order.

In accordance with the directions of the court, the 
Corporation remitted ` 10 crores to the dept, 
aggregating in all to a total payment of ̀  86.56 crores to 
the department under protest.

The ITAT heard the case & remanded the matter to the 
file of the Assessing Officer to consider de novo the 
issues of both disallowance of privilege fee & 
disallowance under section 14A.  Thus, the Tribunal has 
set aside the order of the AO & also the order of CIT 
(Appeals).

Subsequently, as directed by the ITAT, the issues of 
both disallowance of privilege fee & disallowance 
under section 14A were discussed and during the 
course of fresh assessment the AO further disallowed 
the provision of ex-gratia payment of ̀  18.90 lakhs and 
passed the assessment order u/s.143(3) read with 
section 147 read with section 254 of the IT Act and 
demanded  ` 127.91crores payable by the Corporation 
as per the fresh assessment order.

Aggrieved by the assessment order of the AO, the 
Corporation filed a Writ Petition in the Hon'ble High 
Court of Karnataka vide WP No. 17514/2015.

` 
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.
th

The case was posted for final hearing and orders on 18  
Feb, 2016. 

The Hon'ble High Court passed the orders and Writ 
Petition was allowed in favour of the Corporation in so 
far as the payment of Privilege Fee was concerned.  In 
respect of other disallowances the Hon'ble High Court 
remanded the case to the Assessing Officer to re-
examine the same after affording an opportunity of 
hearing to the petitioner.

Letter addressed to the Assessing Officer requesting 
for giving effect to the High Court's order was 
submitted by the Corporation.

The Corporation also made submissions in writing to 
the AO requesting the AO to delete the additions made 
in respect of provision made for ex-gratia and 
disallowance made under section 14A read with rule 
8D for the advancement of substantial cause of justice 
before passing the order.

Developments during the year:

Aggrieved on the orders of the Hon'ble High Court of 
Karnataka in the case of Writ Petition No.17514/2015, 
the Income Tax Department filed Writ Appeal during 
the year 2016 in the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka 
u/s.4 of the Karnataka High Court Act, praying, to set 
aside the order passed in the writ petition. The said Writ 
Appeal was admitted in the Hon'ble High Court.

After having couple of hearings, the matter was finally 
thheard on 25  Jan, 2017.

rdOn 3  March, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court 
pronounced the judgment and the Writ Appeal filed by 
the IT Department was dismissed.

In the meanwhile the Assessing Officer passed the 
st

revised assessment order on 31  Jan, 2017 giving effect 
to the High Court's order dt.18/02/2016.

In the revised order, the AO has given relief only for the 
payment of privilege fee and did not consider giving 
relief to the other disallowances made earlier.
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Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

The revised order resulted in the Corporation getting 
the Refund of ` 108.15 crores which included interest 
amount of ̀  21.09 crores. received from the IT dept u/s 
244A of the IT Act. 

Further, the department adjusted an amount of ` 2.38 
crores towards the demand for the Asst Year 2014-15 
and refunded the balance amount of  ̀  105.77 crores.

During March 2017, the Corporation filed an appeal 
before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 4, 
Bangalore, against the revised assessment order passed 
by the assessing officer rejecting the claim made by the 
corporation of the amount of ` 41.28 lakhs towards 
disallowance u/s. 14A of the IT Act and an amount of 
` 18.90 lakhs towards ex-gratia payment. The same is 
pending before the Appellate Authority.

05 2010-11 - - The Corporation filed its Return of Income for 2.78 
crores and filed Revised Returns declaring an income 
of  ̀  1.74 crores.

Assessment order was passed by the AO determining 
the income at ` 572.25 crores after disallowing 
privilege fee of ` 570.14 crores and exempted income 
of  ̀  0.37 crores u/s 14A of the IT Act.

Apprehending coercive recovery measures by the 
department, the Corporation filed a Writ Petition in the 
Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka; vide WP 
No.12872/2013(T-IT).

Subsequently, the assessment was reopened u/s 147 of 
the act after giving due notice u/s.148  and a revised 
assessment order was passed by the AO under section 
143(3) read with section 147 of the IT Act, 1961 
disallowing ex-gratia payment of ` 0.39 crores which 
were not considered at the time of first assessment.

The Corporation filed an appeal before Commissioner 
th

of Income Tax (Appeals-4), Bangalore on 20  April, 
2015 against the revised assessment order u/s.143(3) 
read with section 147, in so far as the disallowance of 
` 0.39 crores, towards provision of ex-gratia was 
concerned. 

` 
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The Writ petition No.12872 of 2013 was posted for 
th

final hearing and orders on 18  Feb, 2016 along with 
other Writ Petitions.

The Hon'ble High Court passed the orders and Writ 
Petition was allowed in favour of the Corporation in so 
far as the payment of Privilege Fee was concerned.  In 
respect of other disallowances the Hon'ble High Court 
remanded the case to the Assessing Officer to re-
examine the same after affording an opportunity of 
hearing to the petitioner.

Letter addressed to the Assessing Officer requesting 
for giving effect to the High Court's order was 
submitted by the Corporation.

The Corporation also made submissions in writing to 
the AO requesting the AO to delete the additions made 
in respect of disallowance under section 14A read with 
rule 8D for the advancement of substantial cause of 
justice before passing the order.

Developments during the year:

Aggrieved on the orders of the Hon'ble High Court of 

Karnataka in the case of Writ Petition No.12872/2013 

(T-IT), the Income Tax Department filed Writ Appeal 

during the year 2016 in the Hon'ble High Court of 

Karnataka u/s.4 of the Karnataka High Court Act, 

praying to set aside the order passed in the above writ 

petition. The said Writ Appeal was admitted in the 

Hon'ble High Court.

After having couple of hearings, the matter was finally 
th

heard on 25  Jan, 2017. 

rd 
On 3 March, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court 
pronounced the judgment and the Writ Appeal filed by 
the IT Department was dismissed.

In the meanwhile the Assessing Officer passed the 
st

revised assessment order on 31  Jan, 2017 giving effect 
to the High Court's order dt.18/02/2016.

In the revised order, the AO has given relief only for the 
payment of privilege fee and did not consider giving 
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relief to the other disallowance made earlier in respect 
of disallowance u/s.14A read with rule 8D of the 
amount of ̀  36.53 lakhs.

The revised order resulted in the Corporation getting 
the Refund of ` 71.79 lakhs which included interest 
amount of  ` 18.25 lakhs received from the IT dept u/s 
244A of the I.T Act.

Further, the department has adjusted the refund amount 
of ` 71.79 lakhs towards the demand for the Asst Year 
2014-15.

During March 2017, the Corporation filed an appeal 
before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 4, 
Bangalore, against the revised assessment order passed 
by the Assessing officer rejecting the claim made by the 
corporation of the amount of ` 36.53 lakhs towards 
disallowance u/s. 14A of the IT Act. 

Appeal in respect of disallowance of  Ex-gratia with  
CIT (Appeals) 4, Bangalore, is in progress.

06 2011-12 `
crores

including 

interest

u/s : 234B

234C

 1.52 - The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring 

an income of  ̀  20.28 crores.

The AO passed the assessment order determining 

income at ` 716.05 crores after disallowing privilege 

fee of ` 695.15 crores, exempted income of ` 0.19 

crores, ex-gratia of ` 0.38 crores & expenses towards 

increase in share capital of  Rs. 0.05 crores.

The Corporation filed the Writ Petition in the Hon'ble 

High Court of Karnataka vide WP No.14687/2014

(T-IT).

The Hon'ble High Court after hearing, granted stay 

against the impugned assessment order & coercive 

action by IT dept.

The Writ petition No.14687 of 2014 was posted for 
thfinal hearing and orders on 18  Feb, 2016 along with 

other Writ Petitions.

The Hon'ble High Court passed the orders and Writ 
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Petition was allowed in favour of the Corporation in so 

far as the payment of Privilege Fee was concerned. In 

respect of other disallowances the Hon'ble High Court 

remanded the case to the Assessing Officer to re-

examine the same after affording an opportunity of 

hearing to the petitioner. 

Letter addressed to the Assessing Officer requesting 

for giving effect to the High Court's order was 

submitted by the Corporation.

The Corporation also made submissions in writing to 

the AO requesting the AO to delete the additions made 

in respect of provision made for ex-gratia, 

disallowance made under section 14A read with rule 

8D and the disallowance of increase in share capital, for 

the advancement of substantial cause of justice before 

passing the order.

Developments during the year:

Aggrieved on the orders of the Hon'ble High Court of 

Karnataka in the case of Writ Petition No.14687/2014 

(T-IT), the Income Tax Department filed Writ Appeal 

during the year 2016 in the Hon'ble High Court of 

Karnataka u/s.4 of the Karnataka High Court Act, 

praying to set aside the order passed in the above writ 

petition. The said Writ Appeal was admitted in the 

Hon'ble High Court.

After having couple of hearings, the matter was finally 
thheard on 25  Jan, 2017. 

rdOn 3  March, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court 

pronounced the judgment and the Writ Appeal filed by 

the IT Department was dismissed.

In the meanwhile the Assessing Officer passed the 
st

revised assessment order on 1  April, 2017 giving 

effect to the High Court's order dt.18/02/2016.

In the revised order, the AO has given relief only for the 

176

 
Annual Report 2016-17



Status
Sl. 

No.

Assessment 

Year 

Tax Demand 

By IT

Tax Paid by 

the Corpn.

payment of privilege fee and did not consider giving 

relief to the other disallowances made earlier. 

During May 2017, the Corporation filed an appeal 

before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 4, 

Bangalore, against the revised assessment order passed 

by the Assessing Officer rejecting the claim made by 

the corporation of the amount of ̀  19.20 lakhs towards 

disallowance u/s. 14A of the IT Act, disallowance of 

ex-gratia amount of ` 37.53 lakhs and expenditure 

incurred for enhancement of paid up share capital of 

` 4.85 lakhs and the same is pending before the 

Appellate Authority.

07 2012-13 - - The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 
taxable income of  ` 29.89 crores and later filed 
Revised Return revising the total income to ` 29.92 
crores.

The AO passed the order determining the income at 
` 859.93 crores after disallowing privilege fee of 
` 829.42 crores,  tax exempt income u/s 14A read with 
rule 8D of the amount of  ̀  0.60 crores.

The Corporation filed Writ Petition in the Hon'ble High 
Court of Karnataka against the impugned order of the 
Assessing Officer vide W.P. No.15910/2015(IT).

The Writ petition No.15910 of 2015 was posted for 
thfinal hearing and orders on 18  Feb, 2016 along with 

other Writ Petitions.

The Hon'ble High Court passed the orders and Writ 
Petition was allowed in favour of the Corporation in so 
far as the payment of Privilege Fee was concerned.  In 
respect of other disallowances the Hon'ble High Court 
remanded the case to the Assessing Officer to re-
examine the same after affording an opportunity of 
hearing to the petitioner.

The Corporation submitted a letter requesting the AO 
to reconsider the issue of disallowance of ̀  60,30,758/- 
under section 14A read with rule 8D before giving 
effect to the High Court's Order. 
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The AO passed the revised assessment order on 

07/04/2016 giving effect to the High Court's Order in 

Writ Petition No.15910/2015. 

After the High Court order and submissions made 

thereon by the Corporation, the Assessing officer has 

issued the revised Assessment order resulting in refund 

amount of ` 2,48,45,200/- including an amount of 

` 48,89,220/- towards the interest receivable u/s.244 A 

from the IT Department. 

The refund is yet to be received. 

However, the AO while passing the order giving effect 

to the High Court's order, did not consider the issue of 

disallowance of ` 60,30,758/-  u/s. 14A read with rule 

8D despite submission of letter in writing to the AO. 

The Corporation filed an Appeal with the Commis-
thsioner of Income Tax, Appeals - 4, Bangalore on 9  

May, 2016 against the disallowance made by the AO in 

respect of tax exempt income u/s.14A read with rule 8D.

The above appeal is yet to come up for hearing.

Developments during the year.

Aggrieved on the orders of the Hon'ble High Court of 
Karnataka in the case of Writ Petition No.15910/2015 
(T-IT), the Income Tax Department filed Writ Appeal 
during the year 2016 in the Hon'ble High Court of 
Karnataka u/s. 4 of the Karnataka High Court Act, 
praying, to set aside the order passed in the above writ 
petition. The said Writ Appeal was admitted in the 
Hon'ble High Court.

After having couple of hearings, the matter was finally 
th

heard on 25  Jan, 2017. 

rd 
On 3 March, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court 
pronounced the judgment and the Writ Appeal filed by 
the IT Department was dismissed.

The Appeal pending with the CIT (Appeals), 4, 
Bangalore is yet to come up for hearing.
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The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 

taxable income of ̀  41.29 crores. The Corporation later 

filed Revised Returns, revising the total income to 

` 38.66 crores.

stThe AO  passed the assessment order on 21  March, 

2016, determining the income at ` 45.12 crores after 

disallowing privilege fee of ` 6.00 crores  and tax 

exempt income u/s 14A read with rule 8D of the amount 

of  ̀  0.46 crores.

The Corporation filed Writ Petition in the Hon'ble High 

Court of Karnataka against the impugned order of the 

Assessing Officer vide W.P. No.25429/2016(T-IT).

Developments during the year.

The Assessing Officer issued a letter raising the 

outstanding demand of `2.19 crores as per the 

assessment order and requested for payment.

The Corporation submitted in writing requesting the 

Assessing Officer not to resort to coercive steps in view 

of the Writ Petition pending in the Hon'ble High Court 

of  Karnataka.

nd
On 22  June, 2017, the Hon'ble High Court disposed 

the above Writ petition in favour of the Corporation by 

invoking the relevant portion of the judgment of the 

division bench  rendered on 03.03.2017 of the Writ 

Appeal filed by the IT department vide Writ  Appeal 

no. 853/2016. 

Order giving effect to the writ petition order of the 

Hon'ble High Court is yet to be given by the assessing 

officer.

08 2013-14 `
crores

 2.19 -
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09 2014-15 `
crores

including 

interest

u/s: 234 B

       234 C 

 3.10 ` 3.10

crores

(adjusted 

against 

refund of 

A.Ys. 2009-

10 and 

2010-11)

Developments during the year:

The Corporation filed its Return of Income declaring a 

taxable income of  ̀  57.48 crores.  

The AO passed the Assessment Order dt.30/12/2016 

determining the income at ` 64.67 crores after 

disallowing:

(I) The repayment of balance of Govt. loan 

amount of ` 2.53.crores by invoking section 

41(1) read with section 28(iv) of the IT Act;

(ii) Amount relating to unadjusted balances being 

shown as liability not accepted by the AO and 

invoked provisions of section 41(1) of the IT 

Act of the amount of  ̀  4.35 crores;

(iii) Tax exempt income u/s 14A read with rule 8D 

of the amount of  ̀  30.75 lakhs and 

(iv) Interest charged under section 234B and 234C 

of the income tax Act 1961.

As per the Asst. Order an amount of ̀  3.10 crores are to 

be paid towards tax liability and this amount has been 

adjusted by the AO from the refund due, as detailed 

below: 

(i) From the Asst. Year:2009-10 ̀  2.38  crores

(ii) From the Asst.Year:2010-11 `

crores.  Aggregating to ̀  3.10 crores. 

Aggrieved on the orders of the AO, the Corporation 
thfiled an appeal on 16  Jan, 2017 before the 

Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) 4, Bangalore 

and the same is pending before the Appellate Authority. 

0.72     

As the Corporation has contested the demand of the I. T Department in various legal  forums, 

no provision is made in the books of accounts.
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2) For the F.Y. 2013-14, the Commercial Tax authorities have issued a notice calling for 

explanation towards non- furnishing of H Forms in respect of deemed exports accounted by the 

company while filing returns with regard to transactions relating to export sales of M/s. Renuka 

Sugars. The Commercial Tax authorities have claimed a sum of ` 2,05,02,163.00 pending 

passing of final assessment order for the year. The corporation has furnished the 

reply/clarification in respect of the above notice and contended that the same is direct export and 

furnishing of Form 'H' does not arise and also requested to rectify the returns filed by the 

Corporation indicating same as direct exports instead of deemed exports.

Further developments during the year.

The DCCT, Bangalore has raised revised demand  levying a tax amount of  ` 1,38,97,742/- and 

an amount of  ` 47,94,718/- towards the interest, aggregating to ` 1,86,92,460/- payable within 

30 days from the date of service of the notice towards non-furnishing of H Forms in respect of 

deemed exports accounted by the Corporation while filing returns with regard to transactions 

relating to export sales of  M/s. Renuka Sugars.

Aggrieved on the orders of the DCCT, an appeal was filed before the Joint Commissioner of 

Commercial Taxes (Appeals) (4), Bengaluru on 06-12-2016 by remitting 30% of the demand 

amounting to ` 56,07,738/- and requested to grant interim stay for the recovery of the balance 

amount of  ̀  1,30,08,472/-and to set aside the orders of the DCCT.

JCCT granted interim stay on 06.01.2017 with a condition to furnish an irrevocable Bank 

Guarantee (BG) for ` 1,30,08,472/-. Accordingly the BG was furnished by the Corporation on 

20.01.2017, by placing a fixed deposit to the equivalent amount in State Bank of India. As 

KSBCL is not liable to pay the demanded tax amount, the said amounts were adjusted out of the 

amount payable to M/s.Renuka Sugars Limited. However, the JCCT in his order dated 

31.03.2017 dismissed the appeal filed by the Corporation.

Aggrieved on the orders of the JCCT, an appeal was filed before Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal, 
thKarnataka on 30  May, 2017. The matter is pending before the Tribunal.

3) The differential VAT in respect of inter-state sales are being claimed by the Corporation from the 

Commercial Tax Authorities after filing the monthly returns. After the Completion of the 

Assessment and on receipt of the refund amount the same is being passed on to the respective 

suppliers by the Corporation. Pending finalization of assessment and receipt of refund the same is 

being accounted both as export incentive receivable from Govt. also as payable to sundry 

creditors. During the year 2015-16 the Corporation has received refund of  ̀  92,15,130/- for the 

F.Y 2009-10 and 2010-11.  As there are disallowances in respect of some of the cases on account 

of non-furnishing of  VAT 100 and Form–C in support of the claim, the disallowances made was 

required to be reconciled with the accounts of sundry creditors.  

In current F.Y after reconciliation of sundry creditors export incentive received from 

Government of Karnataka amounting to ` 92,15,130/- has been disbursed to the eligible 

creditors. 

The refund of export incentives for the F.Y 2007-2008 ( ` 59.10 lakhs) and F.Y  2011-2012 to 

2015-2016 ( ̀  812.70 lakhs) are yet to be received from the Commercial Tax Department.
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4)  The total outstanding liability towards Sundry Creditors  (RS Division) is 3137.61 lakhs as on 

31.3.2017. The reconciliation of Sundry creditors work was entrusted to M/s. Ramraj & co., 

Charterered Accountants, Internal Auditors of the Corporation. Based on the reconciled report 

submitted by the Internal Auditors,  out of the 40 distilleries 21 distilleries are having unadjusted 

credit balance amounting to ` 296.02 lakhs. The said amount has been segregated and depicted 

in the financial statements separately.  A suitable decision in this regard will be taken after 

obtaining necessary approvals. 

5)  Credit balances lying in the sundry debtors in-operative Retailer's Accounts of IML. 

The balances lying in the above accounts represent unclaimed amounts of one time licensees and 

due to non-renewal of licenses. Review and reconciliation of the balances is under progress.

6)  Inventory particulars  

a) Stocks of  IML & BEER purchased & sold :

` 

st st st st
As at 31  As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

 March 2017 March 2016 March 2017 March 2016

1. Opening Stock NIL NIL NIL NIL

2. Purchases 8,02,87,173 8,37,47,628 20,30,399.99 19,40,541.60

3. Sales 8,02,87,173 8,37,47,628 20,40,568.07* 19,50,262.02

4. Shortage / Damage / 0 0 0 0
Drained out

Closing Stock NIL NIL NIL NIL

Quantity (CBs) Value ( ` in lakhs)

Particulars
Sl.
No.

* Note : Sales value includes margin amount.

b) Closing Stock of IML & BEER:

Goods supplied by the suppliers / manufacturers are stacked in the depots of the Corporation and 

the ownership of these stocks continues to vest with the manufacturer / supplier. The Corporation 
st

recognizes the purchases only when the stock is sold. Unsold stock held at depots as on 31  March 

2017 (as per Material Inward Slip (MIS)   is as follows:

st st st stAs at 31  As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
 March 2017 March 2016 March 2017 March 2016

1. Closing Stock 34,02,025 32,61,783 1,11,774.85 99,043.55

Quantity (CBs) Value ( ` in lakhs)

Particulars
Sl.
No.
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c) Stocks of  Spirit purchased & sold :

st st st st
As at 31  As at 31 As at 31 As at 31

 March 2017 March 2016 March 2017 March 2016

1. Opening Stock NIL NIL NIL NIL

2. Purchases 40,32,68,617 52,05,44,132 1,86,704.33 2,29,650,36

3. Sales 40,32,68,617 52,05,44,132 1,87,295.53* 2,30,411.77*

4. Closing Stock NIL NIL NIL NIL

Quantity (BLs) Value ( ` in lakhs)

Particulars
Sl.
No.

* Note : Sales value includes margin amount.

th 7) The BMTC has allotted the space in the 4  Floor of the BMTC Complex for the office premises of 
the Corporation during January -2014 and was claiming the rent since Jan-2014.  However, the 
Corporation has occupied the premises only during August 2014 and has been paying the rent to 
BMTC from August-14 considering the period from Jan-2014 to July-2014 as gestation period. 
Subsequently BMTC has issued a letter considering Jan,14 to Jun,14 as gestation period and the 
agreement to this effect is yet to be executed by both the parties. Hence to the extent of contingent 
liability created is waived off during the year.

8) Letters seeking confirmation of balances as on 31.03.2017 in respect of all Sundry Debtors, 
Sundry Creditors, and Advances to Distilleries, Other Advances and EMDs have been sent and 
requested them to send the confirmation of balances to the statutory auditors directly.    

However letters seeking confirmation of balances obtained in respect of  Sundry Debtors 
(Retailers) have been directly sent by concerned Depot Managers to the Statutory Auditors. Out 
of 13502 total Retailers (including inoperative and occasional license holders) the Statutory 
Auditors  have received the confirmation of balances from 5877 Nos. through the concerned 
Depot Managers of IML Depots. 

With regards to Sundry Creditors Statutory Auditors directly have received 3 Nos. of replies out 
of 273 nos. of Distilleries (including inoperative distilleries / suppliers) from both IML and RS 
Divisions put together.    

9) The estimated amount of 9 contracts awarded to KRIDL, on capital account  is ̀  5823.35 lakhs. 
Out of which ` 2908.45 lakhs was released as advance amount. Work certified by KRIDL to the 
extent of ` 1388.55 lakhs as on 31.03.2017 has been transferred to capital work-in-progress in 
the absence of submission of Utilisation Certificate.      

The balance amount towards capital commitment, ` 2914.90 lakhs (previous year ` 483.00 
lakhs).

10)  Provision for proposed dividend:- In Compliance with the revised Accounting Standard- 4, no 
liability is created under the head “Proposed Dividend” during the Financial Year 2016-2017. In 
the previous F.Y 2015-2016 Provision was made for ` 2,88,85,835 including ` 48,85,835 
towards Dividend Distribution Tax.    
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11) There are few vendors coming under the status of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act, 2006 and there is no liability against them. Hence, the disclosure relating to the 
amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act has not been 
furnished.

12) There are no earnings and / or outgo in foreign exchange during the year except ` 0.01 lakh on 
account of exchange fluctuation loss in respect of current account with Canara Bank.  The closing 
balance in the account is ̀  0.40 lakhs as on 31.03.2017. (previous year  ̀  0.41 lakhs)

 13)  Particulars of Deferred Tax Liability / Asset

14) The Corporation has taken 68 premises including Corporate Office on lease rent basis. As per the 

agreements entered into with the landlords, all the leases are cancellable / renewable after the 

expiry of the lease period.  All the lease agreements are in force except in respect of Head Office 

premises, 9 godown buildings belonging to KSWC and 1 Godown belonging to KS & DL

15)  The Government of Karnataka has transferred a land at Haveri during 2010-11 free of cost. The 

same has been accounted as capital reserve at the value declared by State Government.

16)   Unadjusted Balance ̀  435.21 lakhs of distilleries(IML)  previous years:         

The issue relating to the unadjusted balances carried forward and lying in the distilleries accounts 
st

to the extent of ` 1004.32 lakhs was placed before the Board in the 51  Board Meeting held on 
th

18  June 2014. The Board after taking note of the report of M/s Dandekar & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, the Internal Auditor of the Corporation and also the verification by the internal 

audit wing of the Corporation and after detailed discussion approved to transfer the credit balance 

of ` 569.11 lakhs  in respect of 53 distilleries verified by the audit firm and the internal audit 

wing of the Corporation from un-adjusted credit balance account to the respective distilleries 

account to consider for payment as and when the distilleries approach for the payment. It was also 

decided by the Board to retain  ` 435.21 lakhs being the credit balances pertaining to the period 

prior to 2006 which was not confirmed for payment by the Audit in respect of 53 distilleries 

(` 203.20 lakhs) and credit balances relating to 51 in-operative distilleries ( ` 232.01 lakhs) in 

the “un-adjusted credit balance account” for an appropriate decision on a later date. 

Further, the issue relating to the unadjusted credit balances carried forward and lying in the 

distilleries accounts to the extent of ?  435.21 lakhs was once again placed before the Board in the 

Timing Difference on account of Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance of DTL 17.39 0.00

Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) to Profit and Loss account (17.39) 17.39

Preliminary & Pre-operative Expenses Written Off (DTL) 0.00 0.00

Earlier year Adjustments 0.00 0.00

Change in DTL due to change in Income Tax Rules 0.00 0.00

Net Deferred Tax Liability / Asset 0.00 17.39

(`  in lakhs)

184

 
Annual Report 2016-17



th th th60  Board Meeting and 5  Audit Committee meeting held on 26  March 2016. The Audit 

Committee discussed the subject in detail. After considering all issues involved particularly the 

period of 3 years has not elapsed, the Audit Committee strongly felt to retain the amount of 

?  435.21 lakhs in the unadjusted credit balance account and review thereafter. Accordingly, the 

Audit Committee recommended to the Board for its approval. The Board after discussion 

concurred the view of the Audit Committee and approved to continue the said amount in the 

unadjusted credit balance account as recommended by the Audit Committee. As the period of 

three years expires during the F.Y 2017-2018, the subject will be placed before the Board for 

taking necessary action on the matter.

 17) Ex-gratia:

The Corporation has provided ` 74.32 Lakhs towards EX-Gratia in accordance with the 

Payment of Bonus Act (Amendment) 2015 to the employees for the F.Y  2016-17.

 18) Loan from Government of Karnataka:  

The Government of Karnataka vide in its order No.FD 17 PES 2003 dated 19.06.2003 sanctioned 

an amount of  ` 3.00 crores interest Free working capital Loan while setting up the Corporation 

to meet its initial expenditure. Further the State Government in its order NO. AE 9 BCF 2003 

DATED 19-06-2003 released the said amount to the Corporation. In its above orders the 

Government had not fixed any repayment schedule and also terms and conditions for the said loan.

Further, the Government of Karnataka vide its order No. FD 47 EAA 2003, dated 11-09-2003, 

introduced an incentive Scheme for better enforcement of Excise Act, and stipulated some terms 

and conditions. It was also mentioned in the order that such amount of incentive disbursed should 

be treated as repayment of Principal.

As per the Government order the Corporation disbursed an amount of ` 46,80,514/- (Rupees 

Forty Six Lakhs Eighty Thousand Five Hundred Fourteen only) towards incentive to Excise staff 

during the Financial Year 2003-2004 to 2005-2006. In accordance to the Government order, the 

incentive disbursed to the Excise Staff was adjusted towards repayment of principal. The same 

was also communicated to the Government in Pension and Small Savings Department.

Later the Government passed the order (order no. ED 201 dated 23.12.2015) fixing the 

repayment schedule of three years commencing from 19.07.2004 with a clause having penal 

interest of 2.50% p.a for the entire loan of ` 3.00 crores without taking in to consideration the 

amount of ̀  46,80,514/-  paid to the Excise officials as incentive. 

The Corporation, has paid ̀  2,53,19,486/- towards repayment principal amount  of the loan and 

requested the Government to adjust ` 46,80,514/-being the amount paid as incentive to excise 

officials  against the repayment of principal and to waive off the penal interest since there is no 

lapse on the part of the Corporation in honoring the repayment schedule. 

Further, the Government in its letter No. AE 18 EAA 2016 dated 22.11.2016 has informed that the 

proposal of the Corporation to drop the clause of penal interest  cannot be considered and the 

Corporation should adhere to the terms and conditions of the order of the repayment schedule 

issued by the Government vide  order No. 4 PES 2011 dated 23.12.2015 
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In view of the above, the provision for 68,64,918.37 has been created in the books of accounts 
as on 31.03.2017 towards penal interest @ 2.50% p.a payable up to date of payment of principal.

19)  Impairment of assets:

The Corporation has not provided for any impairment of assets as per AS-28 in the absence of any 
indications of a potential impairment of loss as the assets are carried at more than their realizable 
value in the books of accounts.

20)   Stock Insurance Premium Recovery:  

The Corporation has amended its liquor Sourcing Policy with regard to insurance of stocks held 
at KSBCL Depots. As per the amended Policy, the Corporation would arrange for insurance of 
stocks held at the Depots upfront and the cost of such insurance shall be borne by the 
manufacturers/suppliers in an appropriate ratio to be determined and intimated by the 
Corporation. Accordingly, the insurance premium amount will be recovered from the 
manufacturers / suppliers in proportionate to their value of sales made during the year (“Annual 
Sales Value”). 

21)   Bank Guarantees obtained towards interstate sale of Ethanol:

The Corporation was collecting CST at 2% for the transactions of interstate sale of Ethanol and 
the differential amount of VAT and CST at 3.5% would be claimed by the Corporation on 
submission of `C' forms by the Oil Manufacturing Companies (OMCs). On receipt of the 
differential amount of VAT and CST as claimed from the Commercial Tax Department, the same 
was being reimbursed to the Ethanol suppliers. As per the modified sales policy of the 
Corporation for interstate sale of Ethanol introduced w.e.f. 10.06.2013 vide Circular No.212, the 
Bank Guarantees are being obtained from the Ethanol suppliers towards the differential amount 
of VAT and CST at 5.5% itself as a precautionary measure in the event of non-submission of `C' 
Forms by the OMCs to indemnify KSBCL fully. The total amount of the said Bank Guarantees 
obtained from the Ethanol suppliers towards the differential amount of VAT and CST is to the 
tune of  ̀  4,623.50 lakhs as on 31.03.2017.  

22)   Disputed Entry Tax Amount of M/s Shree Renuka Sugars Ltd:  

The Commercial Tax Department had demanded Entry Tax on Denature Anhydrous Alcohol for 
the years 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 from  M/s. Shree Renuka Sugar Ltd. In this context 
M/s. Shree Renuka sugar Ltd  filed a case against  Commissioner of Commercial Tax for levy of 
Entry Tax on Denature Anhydrous Alcohol supplied to OMCs  during 2009 vide writ petition no 
63222/2009(T-YET) and  this case is still in  the hearing\argument stage. As there is no financial 
obligation on the part of the Corporation on the outcome of the case, no adjustments in books of 
accounts have been made.

23) The Assistant Provident Fund Commissioner, (Compliance) Regional PF Office had sent  
proceedings under section 7(A) of the employees provident funds and miscellaneous provision  
Act 1952 vide their letter 05.06.2013 informing to pay PD dues of ` 9,41,308/- for the year 
2008-09 and 2010-11 in respect of contract employees working in KSBCL. 

The Appeal was filed by KSBCL to the EPF Tribunal at New Delhi  and the case was listed for 
further hearing on 10.02.2014. Thereafter the case was transferred to newly constituted Provident 
Fund Appellate Tribunal,  Bengaluru. 

` 
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No notice in this regard have been received from the said Tribunal till now as the relevant files 
have not been sent to Bangalore office till now. The Corporation has provided contingent liability 
in the Accounts  

24)  Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR]

(a)  CSR amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
schedule VII thereof  by the company during the year is ` 96.10 Lakhs (Previous Year 
` 98.40 Lakhs) 

(b) Expenditure related to Corporate Social Responsibility is ` 96.05 lakhs  (previous year 
` 98.40 lakhs)

Details of Amount Spent towards CSR given below:

Particulars 2016-17 2015-16

Bangalore Medical College and Research Institute 31.69 87.08

Kidwai Memorial Institute of Oncology 50.14 0.00

Bharat Seva Dal 14.22 11.32

Total 96.05 98.40

(`  in lakhs)

+ permitted cash receipts NIL 59,85,631 59,85,631

(-)Permitted cash payments NIL 57,62,270 57,62,270

(-) Amount deposited in to Banks 18,500 140 18,640

Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016 NIL 14,12,147 14,12,147

Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016 18,500 11,70,286 11,88,786

(`  in lakhs)

25) Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 08.11.2016 to  
30.12.2016 is as under

Particulars SBN
Other 

Denomination 
notes

Total

26)   Details of movements pertaining to Provisions:  

I. Income Tax:

Opening Balance     `  8,844.22 lakhs

Additions for the financial year 2016-17               ̀   1,864.09 lakhs
------------------------

Total                                `  10,708.31 lakhs
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Less :- deletions for the Financial year 2016-17
------------------------

Closing Balance              ̀   5,569.11 lakhs
-----------------------

II. Provisions for doubtful Debts:

Opening Balance       ̀   4.35  lakhs

Add: Additions for the financial year 2016-17   ̀   0.00  lakhs 
------------------------

Total `  4.35  lakhs
Less: Bad debts recovered  ̀   1.92  lakhs

------------------------
Closing Balance                                `  2.43  lakhs

------------------------
27)   Payments to statutory auditors as:  

i)  Audit Fee Rs.2.25  lakhs

ii)  Tax Audit Fee Rs.0.50  lakhs

iii)  Other Services              Rs.0.00  lakhs

iv) Service Tax              Rs.0.42  lakhs
------------------------

Total Rs.3.17  lakhs
------------------------

28) Related party disclosure  

a) Name of the related party:               - Nil-
b) Nature of relationship:                      - Nil-
c) Transactions and value:                    - Nil- 

29)    Remuneration to the Managing Director  

Current Year Rs. 2.65  lakhs - (Previous Year Rs.1.94 lakhs) 

30)   Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees in lakh with two decimals. Previous year 

figures have  been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's classifications.   

`  5,139.20 lakhs

For and on behalf of the Board

M. S. SRIKAR, IAS
Managing Director 

 I. S. N. PRASAD, IAS
Chairman

SHREEKRISHNA N. BUGATYAGOL
Executive Director

(Finance & Administration)

 H. S. N. RAO
Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer

In accordance with our 
report of even date attached
For Dhariwal and Sreenivas 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Number: 007197S

SREENIVAS BABU PENUGONDA
Partner
M.No. 028804
Place : Bangalore
Date : 02-08-2017
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Chief Minister’s ‘RATNA’ Award 




